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Transcript of John C. Depp, 1T
Conducted on November 10, 2020

Videcotaped Deposition of JOHN C. DEPP, TI,
held at the offices of:
CHARLSON BREDEHOFT COHEN & BROWN, P.C.
11260 Roger Bacon Drive
Suite 201
Reston, Virginia 20190

(703) 318-6800

Pursuant to notice, before Karen Young,

Notary Public of the Commonwealth of Virginia.
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APPEARANCES

ON BEHALF OF JOHN C. DEPP, II:

BENJAMIN G. CHEW, ESQUIRE

BROWN RUDNICK, LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, Northwest
Suite 600

Washington, D.C. 20005

(202) 536-1700

CAMILLE M. VASQUEZ, ESQUIRE

BROWN RUDNICK, LLP

2211 Michelson Drive, Seventh Floor
Irvine, California 92612

{949) 752-7100
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ON BEHALF OF AMBER LAURA HEARD:
ELAINE CHARLSON BREDEHOFT, ESQUIRE
CHARLSON BREDEHOFT COQHEN & BROWN, P.C.
11240 Roger Bacon Drive
Suite 201
Reston, Virginia 20190

(703) 318-6800

BENJAMIN ROTTENBORN, ESQUIRE
WOODS ROGERS, PLC

10 South Jefferson Street
Suite 1400

Roanoke, Virginia 24011-1319

{540) 9583-7600

ALSO PRESENT:
Dustin Thomason, Videographer
Amber Laura Heard, by mobile videcconference

Leslie Hoff, Charlson Bredehoft Cohen & Brown, P.

C.
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A It's perfect.

Q Do you recall that that was a public
record filing?

A Public record filing?

Q Your divorce decree —-- do you understand
thaf that was -- your judgment of fina¥ decree was
a public record filing?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question, calls for a legal conclusion.

A I have only been led to understand that
-— well, I remember it at the time. That was why I
was able -- when she had broken -- or breached the
agreement, then I was able to in fact make the
first set of donations to those charities myself,
but I put it in her name. So I gave the first two
to the charities, and then Ms. Heard came out and
wildly complained about it, saying that I should be
charged the double, 14 million, because I was
trying to use that as a tax write-off.

Q Did you pay any of the seven million in
settlement to Amber Heard because she alleged that

you had engaged in domestic violence against her?

PLANET DEPOS
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. No, she dropped the charges.

MR. CHEW: You may answer that question
to the extent that you are not disclesing any
attorney-client privilege.

A No, 1t's very simple. She had dropped
any charges of violence against me.

Q So —-—

A In fact, there were no —--

MR. CHEW: Please stop interrupting him.

THE WITNESS: No =--

MR, CHEW: We're going te call the court.

THE WITNESS: It's okay. I'm starting to
like it.

MS. CHARLSCON BREDEHOFT: He runs on a
lot, and I would like you to talk with him --

MR. CHEW: I would like you to stop
interrupting him.

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. What have I
done?

MS. CHARLSCON BREDEHOFT: He runs on a
lot, and --

THE WITNESS: Ch, do I run on?
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BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

o] So -- so I Jjust want to make sure I
understand this last -- this last answer.

MR, CHEW: You may answer this one
question.

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q So none of the 87 million that you paid
to Amber Heard --

A Uh-huh.

Q -- was because or as a result of her
alleging that you'd engaged in domestic abuse or
violence; is that correct?

MR. CEEW: And Mr. Depp, I would instruct
you not to answer that question to the extent it
requires you to divulge attorney-client privilege.
If you can answer it without disclosing any
communications with counsel, you can, but if you
can't, don't answer it.

THE WITNESS: May I hear the question
again?

MS., CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Can you just

read it back?
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THE REPORTER: Question: "So none of the
$7 million that you paid to Amber Heard was bkecause
or as a result of her alleging that you'd engaged
in domestic abuse or violence; 1s that correct?"”

MR. CHEW: And same instruction.

THE WITNESS: ©None of the $7 million that
she was awarded in the divorce had anything
whatsocever to do with any -- any of her claims, any
of that, no.

MS, CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: You can take
your break now.

MR. CHEW: Thank you.

TEE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the
record. The time is 12:15.

{Recessed at 12:15 p.m.}
{Reconvened at 1:32 p.m.)

THE VIDEQGRAPHER: We are back on the

record. The time is 13:32.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOEFT:

Q Mr. Depp, while we were talking this
morning, you had indicated that Ms. Heard had

engaged in I believe you called it a campaign of
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yellow bellied?

a No, I didn't consider Jerry Bruckheimer
to be yellow --

Q Did you consider Sean Bailey to be yellow
bellied?

a Yeah:

Q Why?

A Because he wasn't man enough to --
listen, I was involved in five films in that series
of Pirates of the Caribbean, and I was very lucky
to be a part of that, and I was very happy -—- I'm
happy still that I was a part of that because I
have a character that has made a lot of people
smile and happy, and that gives me great pleasure,
put when -- when these people, who have made
upwards of four, five, six, seven billion, eight
billion dollars on a ration of films that you've
done for them and your character is on the ride in
Disneyland in three different spots and in Shanghai
and in Orlando and all over the place, I've found
it fascinating that not one call.

Nobody was man enough to give me the boot
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pased on allegations, and -- but it was still okay
to leave the supposed wife-beater on the rides, and
it's still okay for them to sell merchandise of the
supposed wife-beater, and they can still sell
action figures of the supposed wife-beater. They
naven't taken me off their rides. So I would say
that something's rotten in the state of Denmark.

0] Do you know for sure that you are not
going to be part of Pirates 67

A Without question.

Q and is that based only on the article
that came out sometime after the op ed?

MR. CHEW: Objection to form of the
question. I think it misstates the testimony, but
you may answer.

A T don't == I don't recal; the dates of
what went first, how this all went down. I'm
sorry, your question again?

o] Do you know for cextain --

A Right,

Q -— that you are not on Pirates 67

A 0h, that I said yes, no,
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0 and then I said is that --

A Correct.

0 -- based on the article in the newspaper
sometime shortly after the op ed from Amber Heard.
A Yes, I believe it's from that, and I

pelieve it's from the global barrage of -- of
fraudulent claims against me that -- that have
flown throughout the world on this thing called the
internet and in various magazines and all that. As
I've stated earlier,vthings that she said, did,
yeah, I believe of course, there was no way they
were going to let me in Pirgtes -- they were going
to bring me into Pirates 6 if someone's out there
screaming about you being this horrible human being
and then the press backs it up and sells it to you,
sells it, you know?

0 So you assume that because of everything
that's been continuing on in these allegations,
that you're not going to be in Pirates €7

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question. It misstates the testimony.

A I can tell you the God's honest truth
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right now, based on everything, if they came to me
with $300 million and 2 million alpacas, nothing
under this earth, on this earth would get me to go
back and work with Disney on a Pirates of the
Carlbbean £ilm.

0 Okay, thank you. If -- in your
complaint, you said at paragraph 5, quote, "Mr.
Depp's reputation and céreer were devastated when
Ms. Heard first accused him of domestic violence on
May 27, 2016," end of quote. In what way was your
career devastated at that point?

MR. CHEW: Excuse me. Which complaint
are you referxing to?

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: His complaint.

MR. CHEW: Could you show it to him?

MS. CHARLSON BREDRHOFT: ©No, I don't need
to show it to him. I just quoted it.
MR. CHEW: You don't need to show him a
document you're asking him about?

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
Q That's correct, I absolutely don't have

0. I'm asking him what his -- was your career in
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suggest that Elon Musk is financing or behind Amber
Heard claiming that she has been domestically
abused and violent -- and the victim of domestic
violence by you?

MR. CHEW: And just to be clear, Johnny,
you cannot answer that if the information came from
your counsel.

A It's not going to be answered. It can't
be answered.

Q So the answer would be no, you have
nothing other than communications with counsel; is
that correct?

A Yes.

Q So let's go back. Do you have any
evidence of even a dollar that Amber Heard has made
based on the fact that she has come forward and
said she's the victim of domestic abuse and
violence by you?

MR. CHEW: Objection, asked and answered,
calls for speculation, but you may answer one last
time.

A You want to know if I have proof of that.
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No, I can't say that I do. I haven't really
checked in with her.

Q Do you have any evidence at all that
Amber Heard has received any kind of movie role or
opportunity as a result of saying -- coming forward
and saying that she was the victim of domestic
violence and abuse by you?

A I don't know the answer to that.

Q All right. What do you think your
reputation is today?

MR. CHEW: Objection. That's vague and
ambiguous.

THE WITNESS: That's --

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question, vague and ambiguous.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q You have contended that you are damaged
in your complaint, your reputation is damaged.
What is your reputation --

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question.

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
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MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
guestion, asked and answered. He's already said
that he knew that he was ordered to be here today.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q At 10:00 a.m.

A Yes, ma'tam,
Q Were you aware of that?
A I wasn't driving. I'm sorry I didn't

make it at 10:00 on the spot.

Q So it's somebody else's fault that you
weren't here at 10:00.

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
questicn, argumentative.

A I cannot -- okay, I'll take the hit. My
apologies. As I said earlier, my apologies for
arriving late. It was about midnight when I got
back, but you don't want to hear that.

Q So --

A Or when I arrived. Sorry.

8o letls go keck to tRdk a Lipkle MG

ehent gour mputsticn and wet we gelng en dn yeus

iide teek im 2008 and 2026,
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Gty o ut2)
MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question, vague and ambiguous.

TSN fied heen <= yes, & e == & et of

meRey tes Stelen Szam e by @y Dicinces mERemes ==
my emee busincse end my Somns lomyes,

dale Bleew, decll Mawdcl amd his Beetics, R

0 (HouEmuCh G Jenl Mendall endl Refb.

T oen teld it tes somenieme dm e
neighborhoo Mo 65 J) u

MR. CHEW: And again, I would instruct
you not to answer to the extent that you would have
to disclose attorney-client communication, but you
can answer to the extent you have information
outside of what you discussed with any of your
counsel.

A Yeah, no, this was something that I was
told, and it didn't -- I didn't ever dream that I

had made that much money.
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Q Did Edward White tell you that Joel
Mandel and Rob Mandel stole $650 million from you?

A Edward White was brought in as my
business manager to conduct a forensic audit on the
Mandels, but prior to that, it was pretty clear
that that was -- that was what had happened, and I
engaged them in a lawsuit.

Q What do you mean by it was pretty clear

that that had happened?
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{Deposition Exhibit Number 3 was marked

for identification.)
MR. CHEW: May we have a copy please?
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
Q Yeah, I'm working on that. I wanted to
make sure I wasn't giving you the wrong one. I'm

going to ask you to take a lock at what has been
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correct '?)

A (Y¥és; ma'an.)

Q Or the management group, and did Adam
Waldman represent you in this endeavor?

A Yes, yes, mar'am.

0  (And in'fact, Mr: Mandel then:filed-4)

0 (okay. Now, I'm going to ask you.toitake)

(a look: at the second page in that actually ha_r_'_s’-'p_age)

(Li andmif.yoﬁ'Can'go'to{paragraph 31 I‘m going'tb)

(Eakeyou ‘thiough, just so you know what .I'm doihg)

@ég‘:e ¢, I'm goding to. take you through a -ngzﬁber' of: 'the)

@i@égapibds‘énfhéré; 'Tﬁis'4—5thiSﬁC;DSSLbIaimﬂwas)

(F31e4 o public court, right, in Eos hngeles))

(eublic record?)
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MR. CHEW: Mr. Depp ——- Mr. Depp, I would

say that you should, before answering any specific

questions about this, you should read as much or as

little

of the cross-complaint filed by Mandel that

vou feel is necessary to give you context.

BY MS.

Q

CHARLSCN BREDEHOQOFT:

So I'm going to ask you to take a look at

paragraph 3 on the first page.

UNNECE s Sany;

T
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Gﬁﬁéﬁﬁérﬁéndﬁﬁbﬁrﬁb épéndfhis.mdneyfﬁasfa$decision)

{for Depp to make:  Depp listened to no .one;)

(1ncluding"IMG. and his other advisors; and he)

(dé%’nqnded_;‘ 'Ehey: fund a lifestyle that -iwa;;s Jextravagan t)

(a_r‘:g’l.- extreme." "Would you adree with ‘that ’)

.

(complaint, Depp disingenuously suggested he Carnot)

(réﬁgéfnb’éié;u':Ai_;.-;f'-ajwhfé'f-?é'-.he_ spent his moneyorsbem@

(’tol’dif!by-"g}’}r'MJ.:g;Q-" stop spending. To ri__amind_”him,-’)

(thzoughout the entire 17-year period that TMJ)

(zepresented Depp, Depp lived in an)

(ul’t'ra—ei-:-travég-ant lifestyle that often _know'i_n_g_l_y)

(ccSt..D;elpjp_ in ‘excéss of $2 million pér month t_o)

@ﬁiﬁtaiﬂ,ﬂwhibh’he simply could not afford.™ 'Would)

(}iqu agrée with' tha_t:?)

A @wo million déllars per month to -ma-i'nrtaif)

(my ‘uitraeextxavaga-nt_ Jdifestyle 'would be == no, I)

ma&an -—-

Q (ch much were you speﬁding?)

A (It is possible that in terms of the‘——)

Ghe variOUS‘éalaries‘that I was'baying for'the)
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CeEpENy, WY predhckicn capany cF 8o ¢he poepile

e teln e of (e wrion hemwes, et deam’e

-- {peg eeeeive, ey, L8 Ueels

et he wmats to ey, then it's 0 millies & yeam.

0 Do you believe that's an accurate figure,
the two million per month?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question. What year are we talking about? This
talks about a 17-year pericd. Are you asking for
-- which year in that 17-year period?

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: I'm asking if
what he said here in excess of two million per
month to maintain.

MR. CHEW: For what year?

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: You know what?
I don't have to answer your gquestion. When did
they file it?

MR. CHEW: TIf you don't want a record
that's clear, that's fine, okay. Answer the
question if you know what she's talking about. I
don't.

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

55:

55:;

55:

55;

55:

:56:

56:

56:

56:

56:

56:

56:

56

56

56:

56:

56:

56:

56:

56:

56:

56:

35

41

49

55

59

02

04

06

12

15

17

18

121

21

23

24

26

27

28

30

32

34



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Transcript of John C. Depp, 1I
Conducted on November 10, 2020

230

I'f, not igoing to sit. here and agkee with)

% EEirtha't)

‘mumbers:-because it's. very

ias protecting his ass -- excuse me.)

--)

0 (ALl xight \iyou :said that =)

“Z becaude vou do That wheny

(WhatWaSyou

/if ‘he stole 650 million?)

(.-._'

A ORE

(I was told that it was in excess of 650)

( i1lion since Pirates 2 and 3.)

Q (Wha;-:‘é' ‘Was. your net worth ")

A (I don't {know'.)

0  (Was it moze than 650 million?)

.\ (I don't know any of that.: I. den't’ f:o'-llow)

(those things;. I'm not looking —- I'm mot in a)

(popularity contest ox any competition or looking)

(for-more ‘money than anyboedy else.)

Q (Pa‘fa;gr'apjh 5 says, "Depp spent in- éixiic::e‘ss)
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(o:f:-f’a',Si?f' million. to acquire, improve and furnish: 14)

(;i;e'sg;i_"den'g':e:s“,f:f'-:ijlﬂiq;-gdi'hg-;g a 45 acre chateau;in ﬁih‘e)

(south of France, a chain of islands in the Bahamas,)

multiple housés in Hollywood, seveéral pei}-_thou,se)

(lofts in downtown Los Angeles, and a fully)

(fiuﬁc:t_-j,;oniﬁg horse farm in Kentucky.. In addition fto)

(prd;_j‘e-rt;y:ta:’{és-} ufp"_'keeg,- and. insurance, aii“ of. ;these)

(re_'s-idé'n_é:e_’s ‘required a staff of employees to §,Fe_r_:vicé)

(and maintain.” Would you agree with that?)

A (Sexfe‘n--t;y—.f‘,ivé. ‘million to acquire; iznjp,r‘o_ve)

(and,j‘fu-rnj.‘-‘”sh 14 xesidences, including -all that, no:,)

(I would hot. I weould say that that is & man who)

(was covering his -- his -~ his -- his misgivingsj

(be_'céuse, the bne thing that is not in here that Joei)

(Ma'n‘dé-]. is not going to -- did not mention is ‘the)

(fact that thére were about eight or nine, -b_oxe:s ‘o‘f)

(my ¥ecords -- whén we were finally allowéd to -get)

(my récords; there were about eight or nine bojxes)

that were :“0."_3’.. there, and when Ed White asked wher.e)

(ir;_ey-‘.v:ere-, ‘the Mandels' answer was well, there ‘a-re)

(no -= th_e‘ré[are_ noe —-— there's no papé‘r, ‘there's -.—)

(th_é?re are no files and boxes on those, and Mr-.)
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White said and where —-- then where are they, and he

said -- Mr, Mandel said they're in my head.

= how: much d

nd: to)

tdrnish those 14 ences?)

now; bt judging f2

id rot'do, it wasn't. 75 million.)

fote or Tess?)

A (;imeanﬁﬁifff,was really-gqipgjtp”pﬁt)

(something together, then' it would have been -~ it)

(would look llke that )

0 CPa:r‘_ég?_-‘:aiPh’ 6; "During this same’time, -'Depp)

(spler:;tf ‘lavishly on various luxury items, ’j;h‘c'l'iiiding)

(spendlngover18mllllon t6 acguire .Eéﬁdtfﬁiép“oy{étef a)

@50 lukury- yacht ;i Depp spent millions mo‘r,e)

(acquiring. and/orimaintaining at least 45 luxury)

. ‘H&.'spent 30,000 per month on expensive)

(wines that he had-flown to him around thé' world for)

(hfiia—,,;bé\r'égs'ﬁ;a_lf;‘aonsismpﬁfibn"?) (’beppj also ‘baid over $3)
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=IWWb§¢Wiﬁé?)

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question, assumes facts not in evidence, lack of

foundation.

A ({83 say that, but in saying the

:Wgﬂz%
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ing'iin' & penthouse iHeard, )

vy’ BP&nnington end JoshiBeard, the)

eir friends, ‘and the.$304000 ‘o f)

11y when I was out:Sf town,)

aRd hat's what they drank, and they)

weren'tishy

Q  (So the 30,000  is Amber and Amber!s)

(fr:_endsthat are -~ ‘that are drinking this, :noE)

you.

A (It-'S‘ kind of like sitting down to d'inrier,‘)

(?uyiﬁg_évéfyaﬁéFQinner“and saying theyiféfhot)

(?at;?-i_h_g:',. ‘they'¥e not going to eat theirs.. Thé'-'_win.e)

(vas accessible ‘byseveryone, and Anber would --)

(shé'* 3 ;..h'oiij‘-;,;,jgl}:y:_}"abqiit‘ making sure she has. ‘-‘S‘Qme,s.)

0 How often was Amber traveling on films
during the time you were married?
A Three, four, five maybe, six.

0 And how often did you stay at the
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Sweetzer residence rather than at the penthouse
while you were married to Amber?

A Occaslonally when things got to the point
where there was no talking her down from her
tirades and her wviolence, there were a number of
occasions when I would call Mr. Bett or I would
call any —- whoever security was there at the time,
because we had security at the penthouses all the
time, then --

Q My question was how often.

A I would have left her about 20 to 25
times and gone to Sweetzer to get away from her.

Q For what period of time would you
typically stay at Sweetzer when you left?

A Typically? There was nothing typical, so
I can't say. I mean, if I would leave —- well,
I've left her in the middle of the night before
when she went nuts and made it home, everything was
fine, and within five minutes, she's in the parking
lot, having driven over in her pajamas and she's

crying and she's screaming out for me to come out

of the house.
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Q So --

A That happened frequently.

0] How many -- you were married for 15
months, correct?

A Sure.

Q Of the 15 months, how much of that time
did you spend the night at Sweetzer?

A Of those 15 months, well, for sure,
between August 22nd -- excuse me, April 22nd,
Ms. Heard's birthday, and —-- and May 20 -- well,
3rd was the -- no, 2lst was when she had her whole
other allegation and incident. That was the 21st.
That was the last time I saw her. So I was away
there for nearly a month there, right, something,
and prior to that, I would say I probably had to

leave her presence no less than two dozen times.

Q No less than 2,000, and how many --
A Two dozen. )
Q Two dozen. I was going to say, I don't

even think there's that many days, but okay.
MR. CHEW: That must have been really

bad.
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MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOQFT: If he wants to
say 2,000, he's got it.

MR. CHEW: Sorry.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q So -- s0 less than two dozen times, so
that's 24, right?

MR. CHEW: Sorry.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q As opposed to 2,000, right? All right.
So of those no less than two dozen times,
approximately how much of that -- how long -- what
was the average amount of time you spent over at
Sweetzer on each of those two dozen times?

A One time it was maybe two or three days.
Another time it was just one day. So it varied
depending on the situation and how stubborn either
one of us were going to be.

Q Let me just jump back for a moment,
because we were talking about it earlier. You said
that you left from April 22nd early in the morning,
I think you said 4:30 in the morning, and didn't

return until May 21, correct?
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A Yes.

Q And T believe you testified earlier this
morning when you were telling some stories that --
and I didn't mean that like stories. I meant a
long answer, that you had told her you were leaving
her; is that correct? At 4:30 in the morning April
22nd, you told her you were leaving her, correct?
You were going to divorce her?

A No.

Q You didn't tell her that?

A No, I didn't tell her I was going to
divorce her then, no.

0] What did you tell her when you left that
day?

A I said don't follow me, don't —- don't —-
don't hit me, don't touch me, don't come near me,
I'm getting a few things, don't follow me, I'm
leaving, and I left.

Q Okay.

A And I had believe it was Sean —- I
believe it was Sean Bett who came up and helped me

get things out without there being a scene.
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Don't worry.

that's --

yeah, yeah. I won't continue.

That answers my question. Okay, so let

B k‘.?‘j.;irléi;’"ﬁp’imiﬂ%{
eweilinyy;
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T

approximately:70 collectable guitars. Depp also)

spent manymilliohs more over the years on)

e

extremely rare and expensive Hollywood)

(colleétibles, including” -- I'm doing a dot dot dot)

T

here-~ "Marilyn Monrée, John Dillinger afid Marl on)

o

Py

Bfando, | The cbllection was so extensive that it)

F

>_‘t_::t;Qk-.f'fﬁ:app-fdx-%iqétélfy- 12 storage faciliti égé;.'and has)

(cost over'a.million additional dollars o6 attempt)

(1;6 “archive. " e@;’aoq;a you agree with that ?)

A (Ohf-,:-_” I think that he's ‘e‘Xag’ije;r;a.t;;irng' Aqui;te)

(2. kot. I bought Hunter $. Thompson's.archive, ves,)

(for == for the -- he had asked me if T would buy it)

Qoh-i_lief?ﬁe;; was. still alive. T said no, I can't ‘do)

(t_h_a‘t;‘{. to youy,-and I bought it after he passed a'Way)

(becau’se we were gding' -- it was going =t-0:=-be)

(piece'mea_led ‘out, so0 I bought it and preserved _it--,)

(and I have it preserved dll in one safée 'ep_lé.c‘e so)

(tha-t. it ¢an stand the test of timZ)

0 (Do your collectibles --)

A @héf““‘éo‘St a million -- that was a m_i'l_’lj.‘o_r?)

Q ('Okéy; cost over a million. Do’ .you"ha’v’e)
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(12 Storage. facilities that you were keeping all)

(these collectibles in?)

A (thji that 'I_“-'m aware of. I know _t'_hat)

(’tk;éfje"';_,s ‘seme sstorage.facilities :)

Q  {How meny --)

A (I'ye been living in Los Angeles for a)

(Long time. . I've mever been to one,:so.i don't)

0 (D'o‘: .you- know how many .c:_é,llei:i:—_’a_i?ki‘ﬂ.‘e-piéce[s)

(_'_y_jdlfl_ ‘Have.inyour art collec t:ion?)

A (Well; let's see. To pay ‘the ‘takes that)

(the Mandels never paid to the U.S. government for)

17 'years, I .sold a -- quite & nice collection o‘f)

(Basquidt paintings to be able to pay the)

(gévér'riment )

0) (Di_d you nave 70 c_bl'lec-ta'bl‘e ‘gu‘i'ta.rfs.?)

A (O'hf,,; 1 have, yeah, at least 70 :g'ﬁit‘ars})

(and the be;a:_tj?;?-viye_s‘_, I think I bought it for 15, p_u.t)

(a.--ifew--i'ﬁiili'ion"‘jii'n’tc it, and then when I sold the)

boat ‘when T was told sell, I sold it to a very very)

(—e‘.s_sfoj;ﬁéane'-wﬁ,e? had ¢hartered the boat who had l“oved)

(Et and T seld it to them for 22 or 23 mi'lilidnfj So

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

18:

18:

18

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

i8:

18:

18:

18:

18:

09:

09:

:09:

09:

09:

09;:

09:

09:

09:

09:

09:

10:

10:

10:

10:

10:

10:

10

10:

10:

10:

10:

33

36

38

42

44

45

46

49

49

51

53

02

06

15

18

20

23

128

33

37

43

47



10

11

i2

13

i4

15

16

17

18

18

20

21

22

Transcript of John C. Depp, I
Conducted on November 10, 2020

242

I'm one of the only few people —--

Q Is that J.K. Rowling?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the

question as te -- vague as to at what time.
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Q Was Tara Roberts one of the employees
that you --
A Tara Roberts is one of four who lives on

the island, ves.

Q Do you know how much you pay her per
year”?

A I don't,

Q Okay. You've got several companies,

don't you?

A I have several —-- what are they? LLCs,
and Scaramanga Brothers is one that I believe I get
paid through from the films, I believe, and then I
don't know what the other -- then there's the LILC
that owns the hamlet in the south of France, and
then there's Infinitum Nihil and a couple cof things
around that, yes.

Q Do you know how many people you
physically have on a payroll where they're actually
getting paid through a payroll?

A I don't. I really don't.

e = e em @en. Mo, 40 cmpllemessp,
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Q  (paragraph.9, "Depp also.refused:to fly by)

hex than by private plane and reguired)

Gilfstream GV or above. Deps's constant)

te. planes amounted to &piadditional)

Q (Whi_‘a't do-you im'ean'-?)

A (Idldn'thave the money to doithat.. I'n)

(2016, when il finished up Pirates-and we went.on our)

(noneymoon, that was when I got the call from Mr.)

(M'ar;._d'éi:_.whén:"i was in San Francisco -_’i:_e-llj_.;hg'»me;;that)

(it was time to sell -— I have to sell the house ':"Ln)

(E‘ra"rice'ir’timéd‘i-at_'e‘i--y, you know, I have te -- my ;mom)

(waST ~- at the time was very ill and ‘dying and I Was)

(t”o‘l"_ld:f ‘that I had to have -- she had to bein ,a:"}hc_)_us'e’)

@rithdut .s:,tia'.‘-j_;_ifs_.‘, 80 1 rented a house for her, and itj

(wa;s quite expensive )

(I;Was' .told ghe had "t:_ki_re'e“mtjntzhs' to. ~_1.iVe.)

(_I_;r'ént'ed::fi't ‘and Had 24-hour nurses for her. Thé‘ré)

(ﬁas__. no ‘agreement as to the amount of time that We)
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hté“ﬁéfghéfe;”'Sé*l?dign{?fkﬁéﬁﬁyhat)

ppen with. my ‘mother; and

roperty by about six months without)

i;riiﬁij‘si‘?-“‘ﬂé'gds 06 be -‘»exte‘ndé.d‘,)

0 So did you fly commercial airlines in

A I've flown commercial airlines since 2016
a number of times. I've also flown private a

number of times.

Q {12015, did you spend over 200,000 a)

(month in jets?)

A (Ifﬁbulg;have to look at my Workinq)

(schedule:) (Nine times -out of ten, wheh you're doing)

(é-filmuaﬁd7§6ﬁmr§-gding'acrOSS to Européwor*you‘réj

(going: somewhere: far away, it is the preduction's)

responsibility to 'get you there. Becalse of -_'—-—)

(beCauseits not really all that possible for me to)

(goout 1ntothestreet or stand.in a‘line at E_m)
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admpert e @ e a1l theg, 48 do = it em Bo

[chauklengiing s

It can be challenging because you're

essentially —- or I was —— I'm essentially a
novelty, and it does -- it does take its toll on
you. There are times when you'd like to he -~ feel

normal. I mean, if you don't have anonymity

anymore like at least to be —-- feel okay and
normal.
Q "In addition," paragraph 10, "throughout

the years, Depp supported his friends, family and
certain employees at a cost of over ten million
dollars. For example, Depp requested, approved and
expected TMG to pay certain living expenses for his
sisters and mother. By way of another example, for
over seven years, Depp funded a start-~up music

label, Uniseon, which was run by his childhood

friend."” I take it that's Bruce -- is that Bruce
Witkins?

A Yes, ma'Tam.

Q "After years of advising Depp that the

venture was not generating revenue, and after
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expending over four million, Depp finally allowed
TMG to stop funding the operation in 2013." 1Is
that accurate?

A It's not accurate at all, no. I had
asked Joel Mandel to have a talk with Bruce Witkin
at least a year before and probably a year before
that. Mr. Witkin's very stubborn and he was very
happy with the amount of money that Joel Mandel was
giving him every month to run this record company.
Mandel did not stop the record company with Mr.
Witkin. I had tried to get Mr. Witkin to merge,
and Mandel wasn't able to do that, so it was -- it
was a failure, and it had been a failure, that
record company, and Mandel actually let it continue
for ancther two years.

Q Did you ever accuse Bruce Witkin of

stealing from you?

A Bruce Witkin of stealing from me?

Q Yes,

A No.

Q Paragraph 13, "When Depp's spending

outpaced his earnings and he refused to change his
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lifestyle, he was forced to borrow large sums of
money to continue living the lifestyle he chose.
Every purchase, expenditure and borrowing for Depp
was approved by him and/or Dembrowski, and every
check written on his behalf was signed by or
approved by Depp and/or Dembrowski. Dembrowki on

behalf of Depp also signed all of Depp's payments

to TMG for management fees." Is that correct?
A No, this is -- no, this is -- no, this is
leading towards —-- when Depp's spending outpaced

his earnings and he refused to change his
lifestyle, he was forced to borrow large sums of
money to continue living the lifestyle he chose.
No, I was forced to borrow large sums of money to
pay the United States government millions, tens and
tens and tens of millions of dollars because they
had not paid my taxes in 17 years.

I'd also gotten an $8.6 miliion tax
penalty that I had to pay in the interim, during --
during that whole time. So that went to the
government at some point without me knowing about

it because they will pay the -~ they had to pay the
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penalty, but they could postpone them on the taxes
for some reason, soc —-—
0 Do you remember testifying in the U.K.

that Mandel did net file your tax returns for 17

years?

A Yes, I think I -- I believe I did. I
don't remember if it came up, but it's -- it's the
truth.

Q Well, I'm going to ask you to take a look
at page 5, paragraph 18B that quoted from your
complaint, "TMJ never once timely filed Mr. Depp's
income tax returns or timely paid Mzr. Depp's income
tax."

A I'm sorry, where are we?

Q Go to page 5.

A Page 5.

Q Top of -- very top of the page.

A Oh, okay, yes.

Q It's B.

a Yes, yes.

Q And then it goes on, "For 17 years, TMG

always timely filed his tax returns, and, funds
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permitting, always timely paid his income tax."
Now, you were --

A I will —-- I will see if we can preoduce
those.

0 Well, the court already ordered you to
produce them and you did not. Are you aware of
that?

A I am not aware of that, no.

MR. CHEW: Mr. Depp, I'm going to
instruct you not to answer any questions relating
to your communications with your counsel, and I
would also note for the record that most of these
paragraphs that you're citing were stricken by
subsequent order ¢f the judge. Most of this
cross—complaint was stricken because there were all
kinds of allegations in the complaint that the
court struck. I'm just saying.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Mr. Chew, you
can —-

MR. CHEW: TIt's a fact.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHQOFT: -- make those

arguments, you can come back and redirect.
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MR. CHEW: No, I'm just pointing —- I
didn't know whether you knew that. I'm not trying
to be provocative.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Right, right.

MR. CHEW: But I filed the motion. It
was granted.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: I think you're
trying to coach here, but I think --

MR. CHEW: No, it's not --

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHQFT: We have the
documents, so -—-

MR. CHEW: I'm not. I'm just informing
you of what happened to these allegations. You're
also aware of what happened in the case.

BY MS. CHARLSCN BREDEHCFT:

Q So Mr. Depp --

A Yes.

Q You have -- you have tax returns. Is
there a reason why you didn't produce your tax
returns in response to the court order in this case
for you to produce them?

MR. CHEW: I'm going to instruct you not
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to answer any questions that require you to divulge
attorney-client privileges. If you want to talk
about document issues, you can address that to us
off line, so I'm instructing you not to answer that
questicn.

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh.

MR. CHEW: So move on please.

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q Are you aware that we have filed a motion
for sanctions because you did not produce the tax
returns after the court ordered them?

MR. CHEW: And I'm going to instruct you
not tec answer any questlons that require you to
disclose attorney-client privilege, and he's
following that instruction, so you may go on to
your next question.

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEROFT:
0] Independent of your counsel, are you

aware of that?

A Independent of my counsel am I aware that
Q Of the fact that -- that we have filed
PLANET DEPOS
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motions for sanctions because you did not file --
you did not produce the tax returns that were
ordered by the court?

MR. CHEW: I would instruct you not to
answer that question unless you have any knowledge
cf the subject independent of your communications
with any of your counsel.

A I'm going to say -- I'm going to take my
attorney’'s advice because I don't want to waste
your time.

Q My gquesticn is independent of your
counsel, do you have any knowledge of that.

A I'm sorry, I was just listening to what
my counsel said.

0 So the answer then would be independent
of anything your counsel had, you were not aware;
is that correct?

A No.

Q That's not correct? I asked that badly.

MR. CHEW: He said no, he doesn't have
indepgndent -

BY M5. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
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Q Okay, thank you. As long as we're all
clear on that one. Now, I'm going to flip you back
to the page before that, page 4. On paragraph 17,
near the end of it, it says, "In October 2015,
months before Depp fired TMG, Depp finally sent
Mandel a text message stating," quote, "I am ready
to face the music in whatever way I must. I know
there's a way to dig ouxselves out of this hole and
I'm bound and determined to do it," end of gquote.
Did you send that e-mail to Joel Mandel?

A Yes, I did. ©Now -- yes, I did, yeah,
sure. That's your answer.
Q You talked about -- a minute ago you
talked about the records, or lack of records. I'm
going to ask you to go to page 5 again, paragraph
D. The allegation that you made was, "TMG failed
to maintain a proper set of detailed accounting
records for Mr. Depp. In handling Depp's matters,
TMG maintained meticulous books and records. TMG
employed the Datafaction accounting software
system, which is the gold standard for business

managers in the enterxrtainment industry. Every
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expense and payment was boocked, accounted for and
backed up." Do you see that?

A I see where it says that, yes.

Q Okay. Was it -- was there a software

system that they used?

A I don't know what their software —- I
know a few things of thelr -- well, I know their
lies, but this is -- that is absolutely

unequivocally a full-on bare-faced lie. Boxes
never arrived, files did not arrive. There's a
great discrepancy between them, and when you
receive those things, my apologies that they didn't
get to you when you wanted them, but when you do
receive Mandel's records and Ed White's
accompanying records and the description thereof, I
think you'll understand a little better about Mr.
Mandel and Rob Mandel's statements.

Q So your counsel just said a minute ago
you know how this ended. You settled the case with

TMG, did you not?

A I needed to -- you know, it was a
question of picking -- picking your battles just in
PLANET DEPOS
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-- with regard to -- that was going -- it was

already a long and drawn-out situation. ?@m'mmaﬂ?
RaEEs & CesEey des trovRuy
caraer in SRt oF & orffditterentlauyersy

Q So how was the -- how was that settled?
A Well, it was -- it was settled in a sense
that obwiously they -- they didn't -- they didn't

settle because all this was true. They settled
because they were looking at very serious legal --
Q What were the terms of the settlement?

MR. CHEW: Now, I would just caution the
witness that the amount of the settlement -- the
settlement terms --

THE WITNESS: ©No, not going to answer
that.

MR. CHEW: -- are strictly confidential,
50 --

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: But we have a
protective order here, and we have allegatlons and
they all relate —-- they relate completely to the

reputation in this case and --
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MR. CHEW: Well, I'm going to —-

THE WITNESS: Allegations —--

MR. CHEW: I'm going te¢ instruct you not
to answer until we go -- we'll go back and look at
that, bunt the agreement is Draconian. That's why
they settled, it was so -- the terms of disclosing
—— the confidentiality provisions of that
settlement agreement are Draconian imposed by the
other side, and so I'm going to instruct him not to
answer until I go back and look at it, but we've
got two more days of depeosition.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHQFT: All right.
Well, go look and it and then we will --

MR. CHEW: Yeah.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Because I think
it's --

MR. CHEW: Believe me, I would love to
tell you what the terms were, but as I recall, the
penalty for disclesing the amount is Draconian. We
cannot do it. If we have to go to Judge White, we
will, but I'll get a copy of the settlement

agreement. I just don't want to get him in trouble
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and I don't want to get ourselves in trouble.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
Q S0 in addition to this cross-claim --

THE WITNESS: Is it time?

MR. CHEW: It's almost —-

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Yeah, let me
just finish this because it's Mandel.

MR. CHEW: Okay, sure.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOEFET:

Q Also filed a complaint of judicial

foreclosure of deeds of trust. Do you recall that?

A Mr. Mandel?

Q Well, The Mandel Company.

A Right, yes.

Q Was that part of this settlement?

A Mandel and his brother, and also there's
another person at his company called Layne Dicker,
They're all in cahoots. Mr. Mandel had taken out a
couple of loans without my -- without asking me,
without asking me my permission or asking -- or
talking to me about any of it. One of the loans

was from himself and his brother Rob together.
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They loaned me money, and they were using the
houses that I own on Sweetzer as their -- as the
collateral.

When I fired him, he gave me 20 days to
give him five millicn dollars or he was going to
foreclose on all of the houses based on a loan that
I wasn't aware of.

He also -- he and Jake Bloom were
involved in taking hard-money loans from a company
that Jake Bloom represented and was involved with

on financial levels, which were quite against the

law.

Q Was that Tycon?

A Mandel as well. Huh?

Q Was that Tycon?

A I don't know.

Q bid you use Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher for
that?

A I don't know, I don't remember exactly.

Q The complaint that was filed for judicial

foreclosure was November 6th, 2017, correct? Do

you want to take judicial notice or do you want me
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to label it?

MR. CHEW: I think we should probably
label it.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: &All right.

MR. CHEW: That was Jjust, so you Xnow, so
we can short —-

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHGET: Hold on. Don't
talk --

MR. CHEW: Okay.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: -- because then
she can’'t label,

(Deposition Exhibit Number 4 was marked
for identification.)

MR. CHEW: Just to shortcut this, this
was part of the settlement of the other -- that was
part of this -- the TMG settlement.

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
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Q Well, if you look at Depp Exhibit Number

3, page 3, paragraph 15 --
A Exhibit Number 3. What --
MR. CHEW: Three is their
cross—complaint.

A Yes, 3. Which paragraph?
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0 Page 3, paragraph 15. It says --

A There we dgo.

N Tt sope, BRoving o geed dead gees
Pepp, WiEh ne nobies of any kind,
terminated BIE's cwrvicss dn Nomch 2016, ead I

Toew et 4 else hee Voseh 14 da hose.

e yeu, T8 chosted ~ fn OCeteher 2006

nongudalcAlall DIOCCEedimgSREgaan o
ccEtedn of Dpp's PROpeEEies.

Q While we're at it, go to page 20 real

quick.

MR. CHEW: Of Exhibit 4 or Exhibit ~--

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Exhibit 3.

MR. CHEW: Exhibit 3. Okay. Just so you
know, we're at about 6:35.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOQFT:

Q Yeah, I'll finish up. I just want to
finish with this line. That's -- that's where it
talks -- paragraph 85 has Tryon Management
Services. That's what you were talking about,
right?

A Sure, that seems like it.
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Q All right, and then go to paragraph 86.
At the end of it, it says, "Depp was at all times
represented by the preeminent law firm Gibson, Dunn
& Crutcher." Do you see that? End of paragraph
86, very end.

A Uh-huh, yes, yes.

Q Okay, then flip back to 19, page 189.

A Tryon —- in connecting with Tryon, Depp
was at all times represented by the preeminent law
firm Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher, that is -- that's not
anything that I was aware of at any point.

Q Okay. Can you flip back to page 19 just
real quickly so we can —-

A Sure thing.

Q -- that March 14 date? There is a method
to my madness.

A I've never heard of Gibson, Duan &
Crutcher.

0 Paragraph 84 -- they'll be really
disappointed to hear that.

MR. CHEW: That would be good for that to

crimp their ego.
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BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOQOFT:
Q Yeah. Paragraph 84 says he terminated
TMG as his business manager on March 14, 2016.

That's where I came up with that number.

A Okay.
Q Do you see that?
A Yes.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: All right, we'll
go off the record.

MR. CHEW: Thank vyou.

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are going off
record. The time is 18:36.

(Off the record at 6:36 p.m.)
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all right, but |--

A I don't know, lettexrs --

Q There were certainly communications of
different types.

A Communications is a —-- is a —

Q Okay.

A Sure.

0 All right.

records,

And there were medical

correct?

A Of what?

Q There| were some medical records that were
in evidence, do| you recall? Including of your
finger.

A I remember that there was —-- there were

medical records

records may —-—

think a few things were touched on,

[ mean,

for my finger. The other medical

there was Kipper. Yeah, I

but the --

i

well, in terms of medical records and suéh, I think

the other side ¥

evidence.

was lacking in some of their medical

Q Was there any witness that you wanted to

call that was unable to be called? i

|
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MR. C
witness not to
you to disclosd
your counsel.

THE W

MR. O
certainly would be a subject discussed between you

and your counse

answer.

THE WITNESS: 1I'll -- 1I'll have to go

with Ben's sugg

MS. C
you're instruct
of attorney-cli

MR. C
would be - - I w

MS. C
for choice of w
anyone that he
in other words,
unavailable, yo

wanted but was

R e e S

HEW: I'm going to instruct the
answer to the extent that requires

communications between yourself and

ITNESS: Uh-huh.

HEW: The choice of witnesses

1, so I would instruct you not to

estion.

HARLSON BREDEHOFT: All right. So
ing him not to answer on the basis
ent privilege?

HEW: Yes, the choice of witnesses
asn't counsel —-

HARLSON BREDEHOFT: I wasn't asking
itnesses. I was asking if there was
wanted to call that was not called,
that wouldn't come, that was

u know, was sick, anythiné that he

not available to present.
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MR. @
you not to answ
entailed commun
counsel in the
that, you can a
something that
between attorne

THE W
into any discus
counsel, but I
witnesses that
and we didn't g
BY MS. CHARLSON

Q Was €
present that yo
reason?

MR. C
the witness not
require him to
himself and cou
question withou

communications,

BEEW: Well, I would still:instruct
er to the extent this was:——
ications between you and ?our

U.K. If you can answer it without
nswer it, but that would be

would normally be the subject
y—-client. '
ITNESS:
sions that I've had with any of my
don't recall that there were any

I wanted, that I was despérate for
et,

no.

BREDEHOEFT :

1 were unable to present for any

HEW: And again, I would instruct
to answer to the extent it would
disclose communications between
nsel. If you can't answer the
c disclosing attorney—cliént

vou should not answer the question.

I don't think that I can go

here any evidence that you wanted to

388

PLANET DEPOS ,

433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

Trranscript of John C. Depp, II, Volume 2 l

Conducted on November 11,2020 |

399

A The fi

breaching attorney --

Those would have been

with my lawyers
that,

Q

act is I can't, as it wou}d be
attorney-client privilege.
things that I would discuss

;, 80 I don't know how to answer

or if I dan.

But separate from your attorneys, you

can't think of fnything you wanted to présent but

it was unavailable for some reason.

MR. CHEW:

A Yeah,
get it, but I d
can say this.
personal -—- out
protocol and th
a U.K.

court ar

example, if som

Same instruction.

and I got it, and you're right, I

on't want to leave you haﬁging. I

Again, this is from -- just on a

of perscnal experience, the -- the

-]
-

-— and the way things play out in

=]

)

at times quite complicated. For

cthing is not brought up by the

defending counsel, then the other side —-- the

plaintiff has n

5 ability to bring -- bring certain

things up that have not been discussed before even

though they are

a part of the case. !

So that is something that I noﬁiced in

the U.K. proceedings. It's very, very different

|
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than United Staztes. |
|
Q In that context, is there anything you
can think of that -- and we've already talked about

witnesses, so I

A Uh-huh.
0 Is there anything you can think of that

you wanted to present evidentiary wise in the High

Court that you

MR, CHEW:

witness not to
to divulge atto
object to the e
for legal concl

A Yeah,
you don't mind.

Q S0 vo
whatever your c

A I don
would —-- I woul
attorney—-client
other way to ev

breaching that,

'm on evidence.

were unable to?
And again, instruct the

answer to the extent it requires him
rney-client privilege, ané I also
xtent the question purports to call

usion.

I'll stay with Ben on that one if

u can't answer it outside of
ounsel may have --

't think so. I think it would -- it
1 have to step into this arena of

privilege, and I don't see any

on try to speak without -- without

50 -~
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Q So ou
counsel, you cg
would have like

MR. C

BY MS. CHARLSON
Q -= Py

MR. O

may answer agai
THE W

would require m
to dip my toe i
it would -- it
—— 1if I were to
definitely requ
MR. C

MS. C

that, sure.
THE W
cookies aren't
MR. C

THE V

record. The ti

tside of communications with

nnot think of any evidencé that you
d to ——

HEW: Objection, asked and --
BREDEHOFT : |

esent but you were unable ' to?

HEW: Asked and answered, but you
In.
ITNESS: I think unfortunately, it
e to -—- to have to -- even if I had
nto the attorney-client privilege,
would —-- that would be -—- if I were
answer the question fully, it would
ire me to —— to breach that.

HEW: Now a time for lunch?

HARLSON BREDEHOFT: Yeah, we can do

LITNESS: You're just looking for

you?

HEW: I am. You've got mé again.

IDEOGRAPHER: We are goind off the

me is 13:11.
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guestion,

A Yes, I

Q And the opinion,

the statements

article that's

substantially true.

A Based

the judge put it.

is. The probabi
phrased it.
Q Do you
statements werel
quote?
MR. CH

question, argume
itself.
A Res ip
substantially tr
substantially tz
he's entitled to
0 Well,

right? This is

argumentative.

i

understood it pretty well.

the judgment found that

that were made in Mr. Wootton's

Deposition Exhibit Number 8 were

Do you recall that?i
on probabilities I believe 1s how
Is that not correct? I think it

lity is —— I believe is how he

i

remember him finding that the

quote, substantially true, end of

EW: Objection to the form of the

ntative. The document speaks for

sa loquitur. I -- if he finds that

ue, then he finds that

ue. That's one man's opinicn, and

that. ;
it's not just one man's opinion,

a judge in a court that you
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geez, what's the word count and all that? I don't
need it. It's now -- this -- is it public, this
right here, his -- his decision?

Q You don't get to ask me a question, but I
did ask you, you're aware that it's public.

A Ah, that's a good —-

Q 50 ==
A Well -—-
Q If it had been in your favor, you

would've agreed with him and thought he was right
and have been thrilled with his decision, wouldn't
you?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question, calls for speculation, but you may
answer.

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
Q You would have believed you were
vindicated, would you not?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question. It's a hypothetical question to a fact
witness.

A I'm going to say the same thing that I

PLANET DEPOS
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did yesterday to you, and I hope -- I hope this
makes sense. Whether Justice Nicol saw things in
favor of my case against The Sun or not, whether
this case, wherever this may land us, let's say, if
-- if I won every case, if I won every little
trinket or whatever, I still will lose -- 1've
still lost, and that started April 22nd and then
the last time I saw her in May or whatever it was
or --

Q 2016.

A Somewhere. I've still lost, you
understand, because I will carry this with me,
baggage, the baggage of it, the accusations.
Whether I win or whether I'm deemed some kind of
horrible creature that should be locked in a jail
cell or in a tomb or whether I'm king of the
universe, I've lost. I've already lost by the
damage done. So my continuing my search for the
truth, my continuing to demand the truth is not for
me to win, but it's for the people out there, the
women, the victims of this type of thing who are

not believed,'who are being lied to by your client
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pretending to be some new messiah of the women's
movement. She is a fraud. Anything else? So if I
can help other people by continuing, I certainly
will now.

MR. CHEW: This is 11? Thank you.

(Deposition Exhibit Number 11 was marked
for identification.)

THE WITNESS: Thank you.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q I want to show you what has been marked
as Deposition Exhibit Number 11, and this is an
article in February 2019 talking about a lawsuit
that was brought in May of 2018 by two of your body

guards, Eugene Arreola and Miguel Sanchez.

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Do you see that?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 And if you could move down to the bottom

of the first page, this is an article about it from
Blumenthal et cetera. BNBD is easier than saying
all those names.

MR. CHEW: And De Blouw.

PLANET DEPOS
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and made. So Jack has been, yeah, integral and

very important,

Q  Jack Whigham moved to another agency
recently; is that correct?

A Yes, he did.

Q And do you know the name of the new
agency?

A No,Idon't.

Q Are you still with him even though he has
10 moved?
11 A Iwill definitely go with Jack, yes, of
12 course,

R=T- R s Y VS

13 Q That just hasn't come up yet for you?

14 A No,as far as I'm concerned, Jack Whigham

15 is my agent whether he's at CAA or not, he's my

16 film agent. At present,it's entirely normal and

17 possible that Christian Carino could remain my

18 commercial agent, as they say, in CAA,

19  Q And what role does Bryan Lourd play?

20 A Bryan Lourdis the -- he's the head of

21 CAA. He's the chairman I suppose, chairman of CAA,
22 Q Does he do anything personally for you

602
Mandel situation, and though Jake Bloom's thing was

coming out as -- it wasn't looking great, | waited
because I -- because Tloved Jake Bloom in many
ways, and I couldn't bring myself to believe that

he would have done that to me, though when it came
to light, yes, Adam Waldman started with me
basically around then as an outside Hollywood
attorney, which I did not want a Hollywood

L - B SRV L S

attorney.

10 MR. CHEW: And Mr. Depp, these questions
11 are fine, but I just want to --

12 THE WITNESS: Remind me that --

13 MR. CHEW: -- advise you --

14 THE WITNESS: Yes.

15 MR. CHEW: -- that when Adam became your
16 attorney, your communications are [00 percent --
17 THE WITNESS: Of course.

18 MR. CHEW: -- privileged.

19 THE WITNESS: Of course. Thank you.

20 BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

21 Q Who recommended Adam Waldman to you?
22 A Itwaskindofa--it was aguy that I'd

601
with your career?

1

2 A Bryan Lourd?

3 Q Yes.

4 A No, not very much, no.

5 Q Okay. When did you first meet Adam

6 Waldman?

7 A First met Adam Waldman, was it 20167 I'm
8 thinking.

9 (0  Was it in the time frame of Tracey Jacobs

10 -- the Tracey Jacobs switch, was it around that

11 same time frame?

12 A Ican't remember if Tracey was still in

13 my life at that moment. 1 believe that she was

14 not, and I met Adam with Ed White, at Ed White's
15 house, and —

16 Q Did Ed White introduce you to Adam

17 Waldman?

18 A Adam Waldman was someone that was hrought
19 up -- his name was brought up as a -- as a very

20 capable and brilliant attorney, and he was someone
21 that I wanted to talk with regarding the Mandel
22 situation at that time, first and foremost, the

603

understood my dilemma and felt that I was being
dealt a dirty hand, and he recommended someone
named Adam Waldman and --
Q  What's the name of that man that
recommended him?
A He was like a -- it was an attorney in
the U.K. that T'd met.
Q You don't recall his name?
10 A No,Idon't. Idon'trecall his name.
11 Q Sohow is it that you ended up meeting
12 Adam Waldman at Ed White's house?
13 A Irequested to meet with Mr. Waldman, I
14 believe it was Ed White who facilitated that
15 meeting because there was a dinner held at Ed
16 White's house.
17 Q Had Ed White worked with Adam Waldman
18 before?
19 A 1don't believe so, no.
200 Q Okay. So do you recali when you first
21 hired Adam Waldman?
22 A Well, after — after our first discussion

R - R = Y - 7
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604
and after he — he had received enough information
on the case and enough — enough facts, he gave it
some thought and then he got back to me on his —
what he felt I had to — what he felt was the right
thing to do.

Q Do you remember approximately when this
was?
A

Q
A

I mean —

Are we still in 2016 or are we —

Yes, I believe we're still in 2016, yes.

Q Al right,

12 A It wasn't long after that that I — once
13 I discussed the case with Mr. Waldman, I felt that
14 he was the man for the — for the job.

15 Q And is this before or after you resolved,

16 for lack of a better word, your divorce with Amber
17 that you met Mr. Waldman?

18 A Oh, boy. Oh, before we broke up or

19 before the divorce?

20 Q Before the August settlement, August

21 2016 is when you reached the settlement.

NGO S N U B W N e

—
—

606
1 situation, it depends on what — you know, what's
2 presented.
3 Q Is Adam Waldman authorized to speak on
4 your behalf with respect to your position on Amber
5 Heard and her statements?
6 MR. CHEW: Obijection. Same objection.
7 Objection to the form of the question to the extent
& it calls for a legal conclusion and to the extent
9 it depends -- it's vague as to instance.

10 A I think — just —
11 Q Youknow what?
12 A Excuse myignorance, Is that also not

13 privileged?

14 MR. CHEW: Yes, any communications you
15 had with Mr. --

16 THE WITNESS: [do feel like --

17 MR. CHEW: Any -- I'll instruct you not

18 to answer --

19 THE WITNESS: -- we're entering the arena
20 of privilege.

21 MR. CHEW: Yeah, Mr. Depp, 1 will

22 A That's the settlement, okay, so it was 22 definitely instruct you not to answer any questions
605 607

1 after. 1 about communications you had to or from Adam

2 Q Okay, so sometime between August 2016 and |2 Waldman or any of your attorneys,

3 the end of 2016 15 when you met Adam Waldman and |3 BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOQFT:

4 hired him. 4 Q Let me do it this way. [ think this

5 A I'mgoing to guess — 1 think it was 5 might be the easiest way. When Mr. -- were you

6 somewhere in the - I think it was around 6 familiar with some requests for admissions that we

7 Octoberish. 7 served in this case that you filed responses last

8 Q Allright, and has Adam Waldman worked 8 Friday to? Let me phrase it a little differently

9 for you since that time? 9 because based on the look on your face, no.

10 A Yes,ma'am, 10 A Yes, [ was confused, yes.

Il Q Okay. Consistently? 11 Q Okay. We filed a series of what we call

12 A Yes, ma'am. 12 request for admissions, and we attached the

13 Q And you consider him a trusted advisor? 13 articles that Mr. -- one that you had made

14 A Oh, yes, ma'am. 14 statements in, the GQ article, and then we also

15 Q Okay. Ishe--is Adam Waldman 15 attached the articles in which Mr. Waldman had made

16 aathorized to speak on your behalf?

17 MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the

18 question. 1t calls for a legal conclusion. It's

19 also vague as to instance.

20 A Instance is very important. Is he

21 allowed to speak on my behalf? Well, of course,
22 there's a yes and a no in there. It depends on the

16 statements, We asked whether those were genuine
17 and authentic and -- and the specific quotes were
18 genuine and authentic, and the responses to those
19 were yes, they were genuine and authentic.

20 I'm going to go through, because I -

21 just to make it move as quickly as possible, and

22 then that way Mr, Chew can, you know, figure -- to
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after.
Q Okay, so sometime between August 2016 and
the end of 2016 is when you met Adam Waldman and

hired him.

a I'm going to guess —-- I think it was
somewhere in the -- I think it was around
Octoberish,

Q All right, and has Adam Waldman worked

for you since that time?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. Consistently?

A Yes, ma'am.

o] And you consider him a trusted advisor?
A Oh, yes, ma'am,

Q Okay. Is he -- is Adam Waldman

authorized to speak on your behalf?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question. It calls for a legal conclusion. It's
also vague as to instance.

A Instance is very important. Is he
allowed to speak on my behalf? Well, of course,

there's a yes and a no in there. It depends on the
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situation, it depends on what -- you know, what's
presented.

Q Is Adam Waldman authorized to speak on
your behalf with respect to your position on Amber
Heard and her statements?

MR. CHEW: Objection. Same objection.
Objection to the form of the question to the extent
it calls for a legal conclusion and to the extent
it depends -- it's wvague as to instance.

A I think -- just --

Q You know what?

A Excuse my ignorance. Is that also not
privileged?

MR. CHEW: Yes, any communications you
had with Mr. --

THE WITNESS: I do feel like --

MR. CHEW: Any -- I'll instruct you not
to answer -—-

THE WITNESS: -- we're entering the arena
of privilege.

MR. CHEW: Yeah, Mr. Depp, I will

definitely instruct you not to answer any questions
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about communications you had to or from Adam
Waldman or any of your attorneys.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q Let me do it this way. I think this
might be the easiest way. When Mr. -- were you
familiar with some reguests for admissions that we
served in this case that you filed responses last
Friday to? Let me phrase it a little differently
because based on the loock on your face, no.

A Yes, I was confused, yes.

Q Okay. We filed a series of what we call
request for admissions, and we attached the
articles that Mr. -- one that you had made
statements in, the GQ article, and then we also
attached the articles in which Mr. Waldman had made
statements. We asked whether those were genuine
and authentic and -- and the specific guotes were
genuine and authentic, and the responses to those
were yes, they were genuine and authentic.

I'm going to go through, because I --
just to make it move as gquickly as possible, and

then that way Mr. Chew can, you know, figure -- to
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help you where you know you want to be instructed
or not, I'm just trying to make this as transparent
as possible. I'm going to go through and ask you
on each of these whether Mr. Waldman was authorized
to make these statements, okay? So —-

MR. CHEW: BAnd Jjust so you know —-- and
first of all, it would be helpful if we had the
document to which you're referring. Secondly, I
will instruct him net to answer any specific
question about what he communicated to or from Mr.
Waldman, but you can go through this for the
record.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHCFT: I'm not going to
ask him that so that we don't get intoc that issue.
That's what I'm trying to -—-

MR. CHEW: Okay.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: When I say I'm
trying to be transparent, I'm literally going
through the statements and just saying was Mr.
Waldman authorized on your behalf to say X.

MR. CHEW: Right, and I will give the

appropriate instruction, so please --—
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MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: That's --
MR. CHEW: Please delay your answer.
MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Yeah, that's --
MR. CHEW: I know it's somewhat
artificial, but she has to make a record on this.
THE WITNESS: Sure thing.
BY MS. CHARLSCN BREDEHOFT:

Q So on April 12, 2019, was Adam Waldman
authorized on your behalf to make the quote in page
6, accusing Ms. Heard of committing, quote,
"Defamation, perjury and filing and receiving a
fraudulent temporary restraining order demand with
the court," end of quote?

MR, CHEW: Mr. Depp, I will instruct you
not to answer that question because you cannot do

so without disclosing your communications with Adam

Waldman.
A Thank you, Ben,
0 On June -- in June of 2019, was Adam

Waldman authorized on your behalf to tell The Blast
that, quote, "Ms. Heard continues to defraud her

abused hoax wvictim, Mr. Depp, the Me Too movement
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she masquerades as the leader of, and other real
abuse victims worldwide," end of quote.

MR. CHEW: Mr. Depp, I would instruct you
not to answer that gquestion on the basis of
attorney-client communication.

):\ Indeed.

Q on July 2nd, 2019, was Adam Waldman
authorized on your behalf to tell The Blast that
Ms. Heard, quote, "Went tc court with painted on
bruises to obtain a temporary restraining order on
May 27," end of quote?

MR, CHEW: Mr. Depp, I would instruct you
not to answer that question based on
attorney-client privilege.

y:\ Absclutely, Ben.

Q So you're -- just for the record, so you
are, based on the instructions of your counsel, you
are declining to answer each of these questions,
correct? I just want to make sure the record is
clear.

MR. CHEW: Yes, he's going to follow my

instruction.
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A It seems pointless for me to sit here and
go against my counsel -- my counsel's wishes.
Q T wasn't asking you to go against it. I

just --

MR. CHEW: He's going to follow the
instructions of counsel, as I'm sure Mr. Heard will
when her turn comes.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: I just want a
clear record is all I'm trying to —--

MR. CHEW: She's entitled to ask.

THE WITNESS: ©Oh, no, I --

MR. CHEW: And I will make an objection
to each one. She has to make her record.

THE WITNESS: I get you.

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q On July 3, 2019, was Adam Waldman
authorized on your behalf to state to People
Magazine that, quote, "Ms. Heard's battered face
was a hoax," end of gquote?

MR. CEEW: I respectfully direct Mr. Depp
-— instruct Mr. Depp nct to ansﬁer that gquestion

based on attorney-client privilege.
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A Thank you.

0 And you are following your counsel‘;
instructions not to answer, correct?

A Yes, ma'am, I'll follow my counsel's
instructions, thank you.

Q Okay. Then on April 8, 2020, was Adam
Waldman authorized on your behalf to say, quote,
"Amber Heard and her friends in the media use fake
sexual violence allegations as both a sword and a
shield depending on their needs. They have
selected some of her sexual violence hoax facts as
the sword, inflicting them on the public and Mr.
Depp," end of quote.

MR, CHEW: I would instruct -- you're
asking whether he authorized that, and I would
instruct him not to answer that question based on
attorney-client communication.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: And just -- 1
neglected toc say in The Daily Mail in --

MR. CHEW: I apclogize, I --

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: No, no.

MR. CHEW: I jumped the gun.
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MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: ©No, no, that was

ny fault. So can we just amend that and have the

MR. CHEW: Sure.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: -- same
instruction?

MR. CHEW: Same instruction.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q On April 27, 2020, was Adam Waldman
authorized on your behalf to tell The Daily Mail
that, gquote, "Quite simply, this was an ambush, a
hoax. They set Mr. Depp up by calling the cops,
but the first attempt didn't do the trick. The
officers came to the penthouses, thorcughly
searched and interviewed and left after seeing no
damage to face or property, so Amber and her
friends spilled a little wine and roughed the place
up, got their stories straight under the direction
of a lawyer and publicist and then placed a second
call to 911," end of gquote.

MR. CHEW: I would instruct the witness

not to answer the gquestion based on attorney-client
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privilege.

A I'll -— I'1l take Ben's advice. Thank
you.

Q Okay. On June 24, 2020, was Adam Waldman
authorized on your behalf to accuse Ms. Heard in
The Daily Mail of committing a, quote, "abuse
hoax," end of quote, against you?

MR. CHEW: And 1 would instruct Mr. Depp
not to answer that question based on
attorney—-client privilege.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Ben. I will --
I take your advice and I appreciate it. Thank you.

MR. CHEW: You're most welcome.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: 2And now with
respect to each of those that I just asked, I want
to just phrase it a little bit differently, but to
save time and us having to go through it --

MR. CHEW: Sure.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: I would just
substitute the word "authorized" to was he acting
as your agent when he said. Do you want me to go

through all of them again and ask that or --
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MR. CHEW: I'm going to -- first of all,
it would call for a legal conclusion, but I would
give the same instruction --

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Okay.

MR. CHEW: ~- for him not to answer --

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: So --

MR. CHEW: -- whether you're asking as an
agent or an attorney.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: So for the
record purposes, we can agree that I was going to
go back and then ask for each of those same ones
acting as your agent, and you would have instructed
him also on attorney-client privilege not to

answer, and he would have followed your advice.
MR. CHEW: Yes, to spare your time --
THE WITNESS: Yes, indeed.
MR, CHEW: Let's do that.
MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: OQkay.
THE WITNESS: The one thing that I am

confused about, I'd love to have defined in a way,

as an attorney, there's that, but agent -- what --
what is the definition of agent in this -- in this
PLANET DEPOS
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instance? An agent as in Tracey Jacobs, a Jack
Whigham or a --

MR. CHEW: 1It's confusing. We can talk

MS., CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Speaking on your

behalf.

MR. CEEW: We can talk --

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. CHEW: -- about it off the record.

THE WITNESS: I just didn't know, yeah.

MR. CHEW: 1It's confusing because agent
-- an attorney can also be an agent, so it's
tricky, but I'll give the instruction just so that
we don't have to --

THE WITNESS: 1It's just -- the one thing
is he's not my -- not a -- he's not a talent agent
or he's not a —--

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: No.

THE WITNESS: -- an agent of my —-- has
anything to do with --

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: And I think Mr.

Chew and I knew.
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THE WITNESS: Okay, yeah.

MR. CHEW: It's -- the -- the --

THE WITNESS: This is just my --

MR. CHEW: The confusing thing about
agent, as you said, agent can be a commercial
agent, can be a talent agent, and technically we
lawyers can be agents in a different context.

THE WITNESS: Of course.

MR, CHEW: But I think we're clear on --

THE WITNESS: Yeah, I just wanted the
context.

MR. CHEW: No, it's wvery —-- yeah.

THE WITNESS: I need to know the
definition.

MR. CHEW: Context is key. Sorry.

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHQFT: But for your
purposes, Mr. Chew, just me substituting and asking
in each of those questions if Mr. Waldman was
acting as Mr. Depp's agent in making those same
statements =--

MR, CHEW: Same instruction not to answer

because he was —-
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MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Attorney-client
privilége.
MR. CHEW: Attorney-client privilege.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
Q And Mr. Depp, you are following your

counsel's instructions with respect to all of that,

correct?
A Yes, ma'am. Thank you.
Q Okay. Do you have a social media team?
A No, I have a -- social media's something
I've never -- I've never participated in. It

wasn't until the Covid pandemic started to hit and
then people were stuck in isolation that I -- that
I thought if there was ever a time to open an
account like an Instagram account to be able to
talk directly to the people to try to lighten at
least their moment with a couple of posts, this or
that, thanking them for wvarious things, that's the
first time I've ever had any kind of social --

social media experience, and to be honest, I don't

have a team. I have —-- there's a woman friend of
mine's misses who runs it for me. I myself don't
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even know how —- I don't see it, I don't know how
to log into it. I don't -- I'm not particularly
tech savvy, s0 —--

Q I'm going to back up for a minute. I
forgot to ask one more series on that set of the --

MR. CHEW: Okay.

BY MS, CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q -- counterclaims, and my apologies for
the inconvenience.

A Sure thing.

Q With respect to each of the quotes that I
just gave, and to make it easier, beginning with
the April 12, 2019 statement to page 6, for each of
those statements, do you adopt those statements or
have you adopted those statements that Mr. Waldman
made?

MR, CHEW: I'm going to instruct him not
to answer based on attorney-client privilege as to
each of the statements that Mr. Waldman made.
That's excluding the GQ statement, which I
believe's the first one in --

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Correct.
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MR. CHEW: Okay.
MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: All right.
MR. CHEW: T think we're clear. I think
the record's clear on that.
MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOQFT: All right, yeah,
and it's -- the paragraph where I read these from
is paragraph 66A through F of the counterclaim.
MR. CHEW: No, understood. It's a little
difficult because you haven't provided us a copy,
10 but I think we're clear.
11 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Okay, so that
12 same question of do you adopt or have you adopted
13 these statements also would be imposing
14 attorney-client privilege --
15 MR. CHEW: Correct.
16 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: -- and
17 instructing him not to answer, correct?
18 MR. CHEW: Correct.
19 BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:
20 Q And Mr. Depp, you would not answer based
21 on your counsel's direction?

O 00 -1 O L B W o —

622
I me -- do you have a publicist?
2 A Ido. I've had a publicist for a number
3 ofyears. I've been with a woman named Robin Baum,
4 and--and --
5 Q What does she do for you?
6 A Well, that's a good question. Since the
7 =--ever since the -- Ms. Heard's allegations and
8 accusations and the People Magazine cover and
9 reporting me to be a monster and a wife-beater and
10 all that, since then, Ms, Baum's work or her
11 responsibilities or her representation of me, our
12 communication lessened a great deal.
13 We did speak a couple of times. I think
14 she was overwhelmed -- 1 think Ms. Baum was
15 overwhelmed with the — with what appeared to be
16 the imminent death of me, and therefore, didn't
17 really take much -- well, many many many many many
18 people in Hollywood were scared to take a stand on
19 anyone because it could cost them their livelihood,
20 it could cost -- if you back sameone who's been
21 defined as a ne'er-do-well, you know, I mean, and

22 A Thatis correct. Thank you. 22 that's a -~ it's not enough to say a ne'er-do-well.
621 623
1 MR. CHEW: And ! assume Ms. Heard will do 1 Fear was rampant throughout Hollywood of
2 the same at her deposition. She will follow your 2 -—you know, people suddenly realize yeah, I like
3 instructions. Tdon't think T'll ask -- 3 Johnny, but you know what? I don't have a dog in
4 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: 1was going to 4 this race and I don't want to get in trouble and —
5 say, I don't knowthat I can speak for her just yet 5 you know, so yeah, I was — I was not a safe bet,
6 onthat. 6 or I was not a safe person to represent, let's say.
7 MR. CHEW: No, but I-- I don't think you 7 Q So is there a point where Ms, Baum
8 need to ask him that each time. 8 stopped being your publicist? I'm just a little
9 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Ol you know, it 9 confused.
10 depends -- depends upon the judge, but some of them 10 A Well, there's a point where she stopped

11 require that on the record. That's -- that's why.

12 MR. CHEW: 1 think Mr. Depp is going to

13 follow my instructions, right or wrong.

14 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOQFT: Okay, great.
15 MR. CHEW: So the house will fall upon me
16 and not upon him.

17 BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

18 Q That makes it -- that makes it easier,

19 okay. So let me go back to the social media, and |
20 apologize for --

21 A Notatall.

22 Q

-- jumping around a little bit, but let

11 being my publicist, but she's still technically my
12 publicist because 1 have not — I have not, you
13 know, relieved her of her duties because she's not
14 doing anything, so I just — she is there if I —
15if I need to call her, but I have had no need to
16 call her, as she's not really been involved in any
17 of my attempts to get the truth out there into the
18 world.

19 Q Did you ask Robin Baum to assist you n
20 getting your truth out?

21 A Tasked. Icertainly asked her for

22 advice and asked her, you know, what is the — how
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at my mother lying in a hospital bed as 1f she were
on a deli platter. Sc things were somewhat
difficult in my --

Q Do you have a recollection of speaklng
with Ms. Wasser before your mom died?

A I can't say. I don't know.

Q Okay. You started to talk about having a

person after Covid-19 who did some postings for you

1 think or -- when I asked questions about social
media.

A Yes.

o] Do you still have that person? Is that

person still working for you?
A she doesn't work for me. She's a --

she's the wife of a friend of mine, a dear friend

of mine.
Q Is this Gina Deuters?
A It is indeed, ves.
] Have you paid Gina Deuters Lo perform any

services for you relating to social media?
A No, ma'am.

Q She's just deing this because -~
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A She's a friend.

O As a friend and because Mr. Deuters is
your partner and works with you.

MR. CHEW: Cbjection, form of the
guestion, argumentative, but you may answer.
BY MS. CHARLSON RREDEHOFT:

Q She's married to Stephen Deuters, right?

A Right, but the way you're turning it, you
want to make it sound like it's an ocbligation that
she must do it. She offered to do it as my friend.
She has not asked for money. Mr. Deuters didn't
come to me and say hey, can you give my wife a gig.
It was actually quite a sweet -— sweet thing --
sweet offer because I don't know how to do that
stuff. I don't know how to get on LO that.

Q What exactly did Gina Deuters offer to
do?

A Whenever I wanted something posted, all I
have to do is create the content, and then she can
—- she knows how to get on teo the Instagram
account, which I don't, and then she can post it.

So she will post whatever content I would 1ike to
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give to the pecple.
Q %o did Gina Deuters actually create your

Instagram account TcCO for you?

A No, she did not.

Q Who did?

A I don't -- I don't even know. It was
just sort of a request to the various -- you know,

various partners in my work and, you know, beyond
——~ from Deuters to others, T don't know who
actually set up the account and did all the work to
do that, but it was something that I thought was
important at the time of Covid, to be able to send
messages to people’s homes who have been, you know,
in isolation for months already.

Q So sometimes after —-- sometime after
Covid started is when you first asked to have an
Instagram account?

A That's the only time I thought it was

ever a necessary tool.

0] So you didn’'t have one before Covid?

A No, never.

Q and when we're talking about Covid,
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approximately when did you start the Instagram
account?

A Oh, I'm gecing to say it's March. I had
just made it out of London before the shut-down and
gct back to the south of France just in time.

Q Okay. And who did you tell to create
this? You said you got varicus partners, Yyou
requested various partners.

P Well, 1t's sort of -— you know, it's kind
of if you're sitting around with your -- a couple
of pals and you say you know, I think it's -- this
is the first time I've ever ever even toyed with
the idea of having any kind of sccial media
presence. I don't -- that stuff's a mystery to me,
so I thought, as it 1s a way to have a direct
communication with the people themselves, and the
people are my hosses and they're my employers, I
thought it would be a good opportunity to be able
to do whatever bit I could do. If I could do a
little skit and make pecple smile or laugh, great.
1f I could give them my feelings and some support,

help them get through it, that's what it was for,
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and that's still what it's for.

Q So who were the people that were in --
I'm trying to figure out who set it up for you.

A I don't know.

Q How can -- how would -- where would we be

able to look to find out who set up your Instagram

account?
A I would say the man to ask for that is Ed
White.
Q RBecause he would have paid for it, right?
A oh, I think, yeah, at the end of the day,

everything's goling to come pack to Ed.
Q Did you discuss setting up the Instagram
account with Adam Waldman?

MR. CHEW: You may answer that yes or no.

THE WITNESS: I can answer that?

MR. CHEW: You can answer yes OrL no. You
shouldn't disclose your communications with Mr.
Waldman.

THFE WITNESS: Ch, 1 see, 50 yes, of
course, yes.

3Y MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

11:

11:

1l:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11:

11z

11:

11

11:

11:

11:

11:

17:

17

17:

17

17

179

17:

17

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

17:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

18:

29

31

33

1 37

: 38

: 40

44

144

47

47

49

51

55

59

00

03

05

07

10

11

13

14



Transcript of John C. Depp, II, Volume 3

21 (652 to 655)

Conducted on November 12, 2020

652
and that's still what it's for.

Q So who were the people that were in --

I'm trying to figure out who set it up for you.

A 1don't know.

Q How can — how would -- where would we be
able to look to find out who set up your Instagram
account?

A I would say the man to ask for that is Ed
White.

0 Q Because he would have paid for it, right?
11 A Oh, I think, yeah, at the end of the day,
12 everything's going to come back to Ed.

13 Q Did you discuss setting up the Instagram
14 account with Adam Waldman?

N TCR Ny

— D G0 -] O

15 MR. CHEW: You may answer that yes or no.
16 THE WITNESS: I can answer that?
17 MR. CHEW: You can answer yes or no. You

18 shouldn't disclose your communications with Mr.
16 Waldman.

20 THE WITNESS: Oh, I see, so yes, of

21 course, yes.

22 BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

654

that you told me -- or conversations you had with
Ms. Baum, Robin Baum, about how to deal with the
publicity after the obtaining of the temporary
restraining order, did you speak with anyone about
how to -- how to handle in the press and in the
public this type of situation?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question.

MS. CHARLSCN BREDEHOFT: You know, I
10 asked it pretty terribly. T agree with you, so let
11 me ask —

O 00 = N U R W e —

12 MR. CHEW: I didn't say it was terrible.
13 1 was just going to say it was ambiguous.
14 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: It was nice of

15 you to use restraint on that one. I appreciate

16 that, Ben.

17 MR. CHEW: Thank you.

18 BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

19  Q I think we've established that Ms. Baum
20 hasn't done anything for you by way of publicity
21 since May 27, 2016, correct?

22 A That's safe, yeah, to say.

653

Q Do you -- with the Instagram account, do
you have any Twitter account?

A No.

Q Have you ever Tweeted?

A T've never Tweeted in my life.

Q Have you ever accessed somebody's Twitter
account to read other people's Tweets?

A No, ma'am, I don't—I don'tread — I
9 don't read things in newspapers, I don't — I don't
10— I don't — I don't know what Twitter or Tweeter

O I AWM -

11is.

12 Q Okay.

13 A I'm-

14  Q Do you have a Facebook account?

15 A No.

16 Q Do you have any other kind of -- other

17 than the Instagram, do you have any other kind of
18 social media account?

19 A Imean, I have the ability to text and

20 send e-mails, and that's — that's about as far as
211 can get with a computer,

22 Q Okay. So other than the conversation

655

Q Has anyone clse done anything for you by
way of publicity since May 27, 2016?

A No, that's really the job of the
publicist. When -- yeah, when you're — when
you're not particularly allowed in the door to
discuss that kind of thing and you know that the
person that you should be discussing it with has a
bad case of the fear hecause of the situation,
anything that I wanted fo say I couldn't say so I
10 didn't say for a very long time.
11 I kept stum, as it were. I kept my mouth
12 closed because I would rather -- it was my feeling
13 that I would rather just continue to take the hits
14 and then deal with them when I got — when it got
15 to a point where you could deal with a Iot, as
16 opposed to it becoming a he said she said. I was
17 not remotely interested in a he said she said or
18 any kind of contest about it. I wanted the truth
19 out there, and my truth was not geing to be heard

LI - - N T R N P R

20 by the mainstream mediz, so I went on tour, kept my
21 mouth shut and did that for quite a long time.
22 Q And then you filed the lawsuit against

PLANET DEPOS
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rely on my counsel to alert me to those -- those
things.

0 And do you understand in this lawsuit,
you have the burden of proof to prove that it's
false?

A All right.

Q Do you understand that?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question to the extent -- well, clearly it calls
for a legal conclusion.

A The burden of proof is on me to prove
that it's false. Well --

Q I'm just asking if you understand that.

A I walk into this case with what I walked
into the other case with, and that's the truth, and
the outcome is the outcome is the outcome. I can't
—— I have nothing to do with that. I can only
speak my truth and hope that justice will in fact
prove that Ms. Heard was not ever touched, abused
by me in any way, shape or form. That's -- that is
the truth.

Q If you view the decision in the U.K. as
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an opinion of one man and we go to trial by the
jury and the jury decides in favor of Amber Heard,
is your decision -- is your position going to be
that's the opinion of seven people?

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question. It's a hypothetical question to a fact
witness and it's argumentative.

A No, I'm not going to say that's the
opinion of seven people. Listen, it can be the
opinion of one man, it can be the opinion of 200
pecple, it can be the opinion of a thousand people,
and they could believe that I did do these things,
which I did not take part in any of what Ms. Heard
accuses me of. It is outright fiction, therefore,
I -- I can only hope that people will hear the
truth and understand it to be the truth, but I
don't think that the -- the young soldiers who were
storming the beaches at Normandy -- I don't think
they were saying hey, let's have pizza tonight. I
think that they knew what they'd gone into.

So what I'm saying is if -- if this does

come out, the decision in this particular case
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comes out in Mrs. -- Ms. Heard's favor, then that
is what will happen, but that's not going to make
me go oh, my God, I must have done it. Do you
understand?

0 All right, so you're not going to get

what you're seeking anyway. You're not going to

get --
MR. CHEW: Object.
A I told you already, I can go through this
case, and if it's —-- if it goes in my favor and the
truth is -- it comes out, I think that what that

will do will help the people out there, the women
out there to -- to not have to listen to someone
who's built a foundation, some foundation that they
can stand on, a platform, and then use that
platform to further their image as this great
savior and public speaker and an ambassador to this
or that or this or that. Clearly those are her
goals, and I -- I am not going to be the
springboard that gets her there based on her lies.
Q You've asked in your complaint to be

awarded all expenses and costs, including
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A No.

Q Did that stop at the same time in around
October 20187

A Yes, right around the time that, yes,
everything went down with Mr. Bloom.

Q What was the reason that you stopped the
relationship with Marty Singer?

A Marty Singer's essentially Jake Bloom's
fix-it, henchman,
10 Q AndIapologize. Isaid the wrong date.
11 I'said October 2018. Imeant October --
12 A Oh
13 Q --2016.
14 A '16,ofcourse. Sorry. I missed that
15 too. Thank you though.
16 Q TIhadasked youa series of questions
17 earlier about Adam Waldman, but there were a couple
18 more that [ needed to -- for the record, and I'm

L -J- - IS B - WY I - TU R N R

19 anticipating -- wake up, Ben.

20 MR. CHEW: I'm awake.

21 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: I'm just teasing
22 you.

706
MR. CHEW: Same instruction not to

|
2 answer, attorney-client privilege.

3 BYMS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

4 Q Okay. Did Adam Waldman act as your agent

5 or with your authority in communicating with the

6 press relating to this litigation and to the Sun

7 and Wootton litigation?

8 MR. CHEW: Instruct Mr. Depp not to

9 answer the question.

10 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: On the grounds
11 of attorney-client privilege again, right?

12 MR. CHEW: Yes.

13 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: I just want to
14 make sure.

15 MR. CHEW: I'm sorry, yeah, all of these

16 are attorney-client privilege.

17 THE WITNESS: And I'll of course follow

18 Ben's --

19 MR. CHEW: Thank you.

20 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: The -- [ think
21 we raised it off the record, and I just want to

22 make another on the record. My understanding was

705
MR. CHEW: I'm writing my summary.
BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

Q So I just want to ask you a few more
questions here with respect to Adam Waldman. So
was Adam Waldman acting as your agent or with your
authority in contacting potential witnesses in this
litigation?

MR. CHEW: I would -- [ would first
object because it calls for a legal conclusion, and
10 then T would instruct Mr, Depp not to answer
11 because that would require disclosing
12 attorney-client privilege, so I would instruct you
13 not to answer, and he will, as he said earlier,

14 follow my instructions.

15 A Thank you.

16 Q Ihave like several here, and they're all

17 in a row. I just need to put them on the record.
18 A Yes, ma'am

19 © Q Did Adam Waldman act as your agent or
20 with your authority in drafting declarations for

21 potential witnesses that had the header from this
22 litigation?

L= - R R R R S

707
that you were going to think more about

confidentiality of the settlements on the Mandel
suit and the Brooks -- not the Brooks.
MR. CHEW: Yes.
MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: The Mandel suit
and the —
MR. CHEW: Yeah, unfortunately --
MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: Jake --
MR. CHEW: Unfortunately --
MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: -- Bloom.
11 MR. CHEW: They both have Draconian
12 confidentiality provisions.
13 MS. CHARL SON BREDEHOFT: And so you're
14 instructing him not to answer.
15 MR. CHEW: Yes, because doing so would
16 subject him and -- well, more importantly him, and

O oo -1 N b kW R e

—
=]

17 also me, but more importantly him, to Draconian

18 penalties. '

19 MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT;: Ewven though we
20 have a protective order.

21 MR. CHEW: Despite having a protective

22 order.

PLANET DEPOS
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A —on the phone with Amber Heard's —

Q Okay.

A —person that we introduced her to so
that she would understand what a postnup is.
That's it.

Q Do you -- did Adam Waldman act as your
agent or with your authority in any conduct
associated with computers that related to Amber
Heard?

10 MR. CHEW: [ would instruct Mr. Depp not
11 to answer on the grounds of attorney-client

12 privilege.

13 BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT:

14 Q And you are following your counsel's

15 instructions, correct?

16 A Yes,I'mgoing to do that. Thank you
17 very much.

18 Q When did Amber Heard move into the

19 penthouse?

O ¢0 =] O\ th A W D =

20 A Tdon't know exactly the date.
21 QDo you remember the year?
22 A [Ifeellike it's maybe 2014 maybe. [

718
1 wanted to do basically.
2 Q So timing wise, were you engaged at the
3 time that Amber Heard moved into the penthouse?
4 A I don't know if we were officially — no,
5 we weren't officially engaged, no.
6 Q  When did you get officially engaged?
7 A Tdon't know exactly, but it wasn't that
8 early.
9 Q When you said officially, is there some
10 distinction between engaged and officially engaged?
11 A Well, no, I think this just — 1 don't
12 think if someone is my girlfriend, you know, if the
13 word "engaged" comes in, are you obligated to
14 change that to my fiancee? Then you get married
15 and you're obligated to change it to your wife?
16 Why these rules — she's my girl, I'm her guy, and
171 don't want to think about it ~ about something
18 as abstract and as beautiful as love in official
19 kind of status and names.
20 Q Yousaid yesterday I believe that you
21 believed that Elon Musk was behind Amber's
22 allegations of domestic violence and domestic

717
believe it's somewhere in 2014. Very difficult to

—

Amber to the penthouse?
A It was a penthouse that I'd bought years

6 before, so I had already taken residence there. It
7 was a place that I would go to and stay from time
8 to time.
9 Q Did you and Amber decorate it for her —
10 in preparation for her moving in, redecorate?
11 A Well, sure, yes.
12 Q Okay, so do you remember approximately
13 when that was, when the redecoration took place?
14 A Well, I would say from the git-go, she
15had — she had free rein to choose where — where
16 she wanted to be, where she wanted her things up.
17 Of course, all of that would have been done. In
18 fact, her — her decision to use the master bedroom
19 and the guest bedroom in penthouse 5 as her shoe
20 closet and her clothing closet might have taken me

1
2
3 Q Did you move in at the same time with
4
5

719
abuse. Why do you believe that?
MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
question. [ think that mischaracterizes his
testimony, but you may correct me.

A Idon't know. I don't know that —
exactly, What you're asking me is — is far away
from what I stated. So there is perfect proof that
the transcript is all of our saving grace, so maybe
9 if you want to look back in the transcript and see
10 what 1 said —

00 -] & U B W R e

11 Q Wel--
12 A ~— then that could help you.
13 Q Why don't you just teit me what you

14 think. Do you think Elon Musk has any - has any
15 role in --

16 A Anyrole?

17 Q In Amber Heard's decision to move forward
18 with the temporary restraining order against you

19 and --

20 A Inever said that once.

21 a little by surprise, but no, that was all 21  Q And domestic violence?
22 provided, and she had a choice of whatever she 22 A Never said that once, ma'am,
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to not get loaded and continue drinking. That was

their little ijoke.

MR. CHEW: Objection. Lack of foundation.
Argumentative. Assumes facts not in evidence.
Calls for expert conclusion. Calls for

speculation.

Q@ How long —- how long have you been using
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that down. Thank you. BAnd if you can bring up
Exhibit Number 527
REMOTE TECH: Yes, ma'am. Stand by.
{(Depp Exhibit 52, previously marked, is
attached to the transcript.)

Q Mr. Depp, I'm going to show you what has
been marked as Deposition Exhibit Number 52. It
is dated March 6th, 2020, and is a disclosure
order from the High Court of Justice in London in
the UK matter. 2And I'm going to direct your
attention --

MS. BREDEHOFT: 1If I can take control --
there we go. Thank you, Austin.

Q -- going to direct your attention to the
second page, paragraph one. And it says -- let's

see if I can color that. No, I didn't do that

very well. "In respect of all recordings, whether

made digitally or by any other means, which
include the voice of Amber Heard, whether or not
they also include the voice of claimant, 'the
recordings,' the claimant do by 4:00 p.m. on 10th

March 2020 provide a witness statement verified
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with a statement of truth from him personally
listing all of the recordings within his control
that fall within the scope of CPR 31.6." Do you
see that?

MR. CHEW: Objection. Lack of foundation.
Assumes facts not in evidence.

A T see what you're talking about, yeah, I
mean I see the paragraph.

Q Do you -- do you have a recollection of
being asked to provide all of the recordings that
you made that include the voice of Amber Heard?

MR. CHEW: I would instruct the witness
not to answer that question on the -- if you
cannot answer that without disclosing
attorney-client privilege, and I don't know how he

could possibly answer it without disclosing

communications you had with your attorneys at

Shillings and other -- and perhaps other
attorneys.

A I mean the one thing that I -- here's the
only thing that -- I mean the one thing that I can

say 1s that my devices were given to my
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representatives on more than one occasion, and
they have everything and have had everything for
well over -- well-well over a year now. It's been
a couple years. So, there's been -—- if you wanted
to know, vyou'd have to ask my attorneys, to he
honest.

Q Do you recall turning over all of the
recordings that you made which include the voice
of Amber Heard?

MR. CHEW: OCbjections. Asked and
answered. And I would instruct you not to answer
to the extent that you can't do so without
disclosing communications with your attorneys.

A I think that -- no disrespect but I
believe —- but I believe you got your —-- your —-—
your answer,

Q Now, you said, "over a year ago." Do you
recall producing these in the range of March 10,
20207

A I have given my devices over long prior to
the Sun case, long prior to this case, all the

way -- I mean it's been one, two, three -- I don't
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know how many times. My devices have been,

whatever, whatever you dc. You go through them.

You scan them. You do whatever., You get -- so,
in terms of specifics, I -- I don't know -- I
think the -- the only way to get that information

is really from my attorneys.
MR. CHEW: Yeah, and I instruct you not to
answer that.
Ms. Bredehoft, if you'd attended the
hearing on December 10, you would know that
Mr. Depp is not waiving attorney-client privilege
and has not done so and will not do so in future.
MS. BREDEHOFT: Austin, can you pull up
Depp Number 53, please.
REMOTE TECH: Stand by.
(Depp Exhibit 53, previously marked, is
attached to the transcript.)
Q Mr. Depp I'm going to show you what has
been marked as Deposition Exhibit Number 53.
A Okay.
Q TIt's a portion of -- it's dated March 10,

2020, and it's a portion of a second witness
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statement ¢f Jenny Afia. Do you recognize Jenny
Afia's name? Was she counsel for you?

A Yes.

Q@ All right. Then I'm going to take you to
paragraph 16, and it starts out with, "We are
currently in the process of listening to all of
the audio and video files which have been
extracted from claimant's devices that were
supplied to our firm by the claimant's previous
solicitors." Do you see that?

A It's guite small. TIf you could make the
document larger --

Q I sure will. I sure will.

A Helpful. Thank you.

Q 8o, what I was just referring to was here.

A Yes. Yes.

Q Do you see that?

A Uh-huh.
Q And —-
A Yes.

Q And then it says, "There are in excess of

50 files. ©Of the 50 files so far reviewed, none
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888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

12

12:

12;

12:

12:

12:

12:

12:

12:

12:

12

12

12

12:

12:

12:

12:

12

12:

12

12

12:

:50:

50:

50:

50:

50:

51:

51

51:

51:

51:

:51:

:51:

:51:;

51:

51:

51:

51

51:

51:

:51:

:51:

51:

35

41

44

46

52

00

:03

05

08

11

14

17

18

20

21

25

126

26

27

28

29

36



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

CONFIDENTIAL
Transcript of John C. Depp, I, Volume 4
Conducted on December 14, 2021

976

of the documents f£all to be -- fail to be
disclosed fall to that." I don't know what that

means. "In addition" -- this is the part I want

to call your attention to -- "In addition to those

files, our team extracted more than 1l5-and-a-half

hours of audio recordings that include the voice

of Ms. Heard, which a senior lawyer has started to

review in order to apply the tests of disclosure
pursuant to CPR 31.6." Do you see that?

A I do.

Q Is it your best reccllection that you
recorded 15-and-a-half hours of audio recording
that included Amber Heard?

A ©Oh, I don't think that I could have stuck
it out for 15 hours of recording, no.

Q You think it was less than that?

A I would -- I would say that it wouldn't
come anywhere near that.

Q Do you have any explanation for why your
attorneys are representing to the court that
there's 15-and-a-half hours of audio recordings

that include the voice of Ms. Heard?
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MR. CHEW: Objection., I'm going to
instruct the witness not to answer that question
because he can't possibly answer that question
without disclosing communications with his
attorneys. Again, I think you should ask his
attorneys.

Q Is it your testimony under oath, Mr. Depp,
that you did not have in your possession 15-and-a-
half hours of audio recordings that include the
voice of Ms. Heard?

A 15 hours of audio record -- it sounds to
me like what is being said i1s that there are 15-
and-a-half hours of audio recordings and that a
portion of those audio recordings include the
voice of Amber Heard. But I don't believe that
there are 15-and-a-half hours of me recording
Ms. Heard. There's no way. 15-and-a-half hours?
No. 1It's likely that she has, though.

MS. BREDEHOFT:

Austin, can you pull up

Exhibit 54, please.

REMOTE TECH: Stand by.
MS. BREDEHOFT: Thank you.
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(Depp Exhibit 54, previously marked, is
attached to the transcript.)
MS. BREDEHOFT:

Q I'm going to show you whalt -- as soon as
he shows it to us --

A If there's a pause, it's because the
battery dropped dead.

Q I'm going to ask you to take a lecok at
Deposition Exhibit Number 54, This is the fourth
witness statement of Jchn Christopher Depp, II.
That's you; correct?

A That is me, yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. And --

A What's the date on this?
Q It's March 12, 2020,
A Uh-huh.

Q@ Do you see that?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. And then I'm going to scroll down,
and I'm going to direct your attention to -- as
soon as I can scroll -- paragraph number seven.

I'm going to try to make this a little bit larger
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for you.

A That's great.

Q And it says, "Following this search and
analysis, T am advised that all of the recordings
which include the voice of Ms. Heard which fall
within my control and which fall within the scope
of CPR 31.6 are as follows:" And you list two of
them there. The first is an audio recording with
the file name, and I'm not going to read that,
recorded on 26 March 2015 at 11:01:16 p.m. Do you
see that?

A Uh-huh. I do, ma'am, yes.

Q Okay. And then the second one is an audio
recording with the file name, and I'm not going to
read that, recorded on 4 January 2016 at 2:38 p.m.
bo you see that?

A 2:38. Yes, I do. Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. Now, were those full audio
recordings at that time?

A I don't -—- I do not know what -- what —-
what they were exactly.

Q ©h.
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A Tt would be hard to say. It's a sort of
like trying to keep track of those file numbers,
you know,

Q All right. Now, on August 14, 2020, you
produced in this litigation as Depp Bates stamp
number 8259 a partial of this first audio
recording. Do you know where the rest of the
audiq recording is?

MR. CHEW:

Objection, Argumentative.

Lack of foundation. Assumes facts not in
evidence.

A So, the question is do I know where the
beginning of something is, the beginning of an
audio recording?

Q The full recording.

A The full record --

Q It's probably a partial. Where is the
full recording?

MR. CHEW: Again, I'll object.
Argumentative. Lack of foundation. Assumes facts

not in evidence.

A I don't know what the full recording is,
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was, Oor -— so -~

Q What steps did you take to preserve the
full recording?

MR. CHEW: Objection. Vague. Ambiguous.
He's already answered as to turning over his
devices to his counsel. 2and I would instruct the
witness not to answer to the extent that answering
would require him to disclose communications with
any counsel, present or former.

A TI'm going to take Mr. Chew's advice.

Q So, you cannot answer that question?

A Apparently not.

Q¢ Did you delete any part of the audio
recording recorded on 26 March 2015 at
11:01:16 p.m. prior to turning it over to your
counsel?

A I deleted nothing.

Q OQOkay. &And then I'll now ask you, on the
second one, did you delete any portion of the
audio recording that was recorded on 4
January 2016 at 2:38:58 p.m. prior to turning it

over to counsel?
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MR. CHEW: Argumentative. Objection to
the form of the question. Argumentative. Assumes
facts not 1n evidence.

But you may answer the question.

A Again, I —- I destroyed nothing from any
recording. I would -- destroved no recordings.
I -- I destroyed nothing.

Q@ Okay. BSo, when -- as far as you know,

when you turned these two recordings over to your
counsel, they were the full recordings; is that
correct?

A I turned over my devices and counsel took
what, I imagine, they -- was necessary. But T
don't -- I don't -—- I didn't specifically say,
"Oh, here's this; here's this; here's this; here's
thig."™ That's -- I just gave my devices without,
of course -- without even pondering the idea of
trying to clean something, I mean because that can
always be found and, plus, I don't need to. I
don't need to clean anything up.

Q All right. Now, as of 12 March 2020, had

you turned these devices over to your counsel that
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included these two audio recordings?
MR. CHEW: Objection. Asked and answered.

A Those audio recordings were included in

the -- if they were in my devices --
Q OQOkay.
A -- then they got -- then they were sent to

all counsel, all my counsel.

Q Now, in the two files that were turned
over in this litigation, the first of them Depp
8259, it has a —-- has no file create date and has
a last modified date as of August 13, 2020, which
is several months after this. Do you know who
modified or manipulated the recording as of
August 13, 202072

MR. CHEW: Objection. Assumes facts not

in evidence. Lack of foundation. Unintelligible.

A I don't know anything about anyone
deleting anything.
Q Do you know where the missing metadata is
on creating the file?
MR. CHEW: Objection. Assumes facts not

in evidente. Argumentative. Lack of foundation.
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Calls for speculation.

A No, I don't ——- I don't know anything
about -~ as far as I've ever known, if you take a
photograph, if you do -- 1f you make a recording,

whatever, the metadata will automatically record
itself and be there to -- to access. Aand there
shouldn't be any problem accessing any of the
metadata because I'm not as -- I'm not computer
literate enough to really go in and know what --
much about metadata.

Q Do you know who leaked a partial recording
to The Daily Mail of this audio recording
lidentified in paragraph 7A of Exhibit Number 55 --
5472

MR. CHEW: Objection. Argumentative.
Lack of foundation. Assumes facts nct in
evidence. Calls for speculation.

A I -~ I don't quite know exactly what
you're asking.

Q So, a partial of the audic recording that
was recorded on 26 March 2015, which you've

lidentified in paragraph 7A of your witness
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statement, was leaked To The Daily Mail. Do you
know who did that?
Assumes facts not

MR. CHEW: Objection.

in evidence. Facts -—- assumes facts that aren't
true. Lack of foundation.

A I -- I don't know —-

0 Did you leak it?

A ~-- of anyone who would have touched the
metadata. I don't know of anyone who would
have -- of —-- of —--

Q@ Mr. Depp, I'm asking you --

A ~-- pulled anything out or partialized
something.

0 I'm asking you a different question. Do
you know who provided a partial recordinqkof the
audio recording from 26 March 2015 to The Dailly
Mail?

MR. CHEW:

Objection. Assumes facts not

in evidence. Lack of foundation.
A You're -- you're asking me something

that —- I don't know that the answer you're going

to receive from me is going to be --
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Q I'm asking if you know. If you don't
know, then the answer is no, you don't know.

A Well, I --

Q0 Do you know?

MR. CHEW: And, again, I would object.
You're just making assertions. You're assuming
facts that aren't in evidence without any
foundation. So, I -- I --

A Which doesn't make it any easier for me to
understand what you're talking about.

Q Let me ask you this: Did you leak a
partial recording of the 26 March 2015 audio
recording that you've identified in paragraph 72
of your witness statement to The Daily Mail?

A Did T -~

MR. CHEW:

Objection. Argumentative.

Lack of foundation. Assumes facts not in
evidence. Contradicts the witness statements

you're directing him to.

A You want to figure out how to -- how do
we -—- how we get through this with her or I don't
know —-
PLANET DEPOS
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Q I asked you whether you did. Did you leak
or not?

A I was just discussing something with my
His name is Ben Chew,.

attorney.

MR. CHEW: TIt's vague. I mean object on

the ground it's wvague. Do you understand what
she's asking you?
A Well --

MR. CHEW: If you don't, then you can't
answer it.

MS. BREDEHOFT: I object to your coaching,
Ben. It's a very simple gquestion.

MR. CHEW: I'm not coaching. You're just
asking really bad questions and wasting a lot of
time.

A Are you -- are you asking me a question?
Are you insinuating as you ask the question? Are
you asking about me? Are you asking about someone
else? Are you saying that I made the tape partial
prior to? Are you —-- whe —-- because the --
All the devices,

everything went to my attorneys.

all the information, so if something ended up
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partial, I don't know. If something ended up not
to your liking, I don't know.

Q Did Adam Waldman represent you as of 20
March 20207

A T think -- I think we might be getting
into something that's attorney-client privilege,
and I -- didn't the judge also just recently find
that kind of an unpleasant thing for you to be --

MR, CHEW: I would -~ I would instruct the
witness not to answer any questions about any
communications between you and Adam Waldman, who
Ms. Bredehoft knows better than anybody is one of
your counsel. So, I instruct you not to answer
and we can move on.

Q Well -- well, we've got to move backwards.

A I'm invoking attorney-client privilege.

Q Mr. Depp, I'm going to ask you one more
time. Did you provide a partial audio recording
of the 26 March 2015 audio recording that you've
identified as paragraph -- in paragraph 7A of your
witness statement t¢ The Daily Mail?

Yes or no,

did you provide it to them?
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A My devices were given to my attorneys.

Q That's not the question I'm asking you.
Did you give a partial of the audio recording to
The Daily Mail?

A Did I personally give an audio recording
to anyone? No.

Q Do you know who did?

MR. CHEW: ©No, I'm going to instruct you
not to answer that question. You've already --
you've already answered the one questicn she asked
that she was entitled to ask. You said you didn't
do 1it. Let's mowve on.

A I think she said -- she's getting -- she's
getting into territory where the judge has
already -- I think the judge has made an order
about --

Q Mr. Depp, did you provide -—-

A I'm sorry. I was just talking.

Q But you weren't answering the gquestion.
Mr. Depp —-

A You think that I answered your gquestion

wrong --
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Q Mr. Depp —-

MR. CHEW: {Indecipherable) he did not.

Q Mr. Depp, did you provide a partial of the
audio recording on 4 January 2016 that you
identified in paragraph 7B of your witness
statement to The Daily Mail?

MR. CHEW: Objection. It assumes facts
not in evidence, misstates his testimony, lack of
foundation, and contradicts the document, and
asked and answered.

Q What's your answer?

B I told you that's {(indecipherable}.

Q You need to answer the question.

MR. CHEW: You may answer the guestion
again if you understand.

A Did you -- did you —-- maybe you were
working up a —-

Q Are you refusing to answer the gquestion,
Mr. Depp?

MR. CHEW: ©No, he already answered the
guestion.

MS. BREDEHOFT: No, he didn't, Mr. Chew.
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He answered the one that's 74, not 7B.

THE WITNESS: Austin, I know you're the
gentleman -- Vicky, Ms. Wilson, is it possible,
are you able to read back —-

Q No, you don't get to ask that question.

A TI'm not asking you, ma'am.

Q0 Have you made any effort at all to try to
locate the full recordings that you've 1ldentified
here in paragraph 72 and B of your witness
statement?

MR, CHEW: Objection. Asked and answered.
Lack of foundation. Argumentative. Misstates the
document. He said what he did with his devices
three or four times.

MS. BREDEHOFT: That's not what I'm
asking.

0 Have you made any effort at all to find
out where the full recordings are of the audio
recording from 26 March 2015 and the audio
recording from 4 January 20167

MR. CHEW: Objection. Argumentative.

Lack of foundation. Assumes facts not in
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evidence. Assuming partial recordings.

A I just looked at a piece of paper that you
showed me with these file names on them. You even
yourself skipped through the file names because
it's a bunch of numbers. You're saying one 1is
partial. Did T make it partial or did I give it?
I don't know what these are.

S0, I den't -- I cannot tell you
1,000 percent what these things are, so I cannot
answer your questiocons in any way that's going to
please you and make you jump for joy. I can only
tell you, as I did say --

Q But the answer is no. The answer is no,
you have not made any effort --

MR. CHEW: Ms. Bredehoft, please let --
please let him finish. You say --
MS. BREDEHOFT: He's not answering the
question.

He's being --

MR. CHEW: He was trying. He was trying

to answer your question.

MS. BREDEHOFT: He's not trying.

All right. Let's go. Take this one out,
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Austin.

MR. CHEW: Now you're just being nasty,
and if you contilnue --

MS. BREDEHOFT: I'm not being nasty.
You're intentionally trying to drag this out so
that I don't get to ask the questions, and you
know it.

MR. CHEW: You're projecting ycur value ox
lack thereof onto me.
BY MS. BREDEHOQFT:

Q All right. Let's talk about the op-ed,
all right, that Amber Heard published iﬂ The
Washington Post. Do you recall that?

A When the article was published in the
Washington Post was December 18th, 2000 --
December something 2018, was it?

Q I'm asking —-- okay. Let's just go to the

next gquestion. Yes, that's correct. 0Okay. Other

than --
A That's good. My memory worked. That's
great.

Q So, other than -- you're looking down at
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evidence. Assuming partial recordings.

A Tjustlooked at a piece of paper that you
showed me with these file names on them. You even
yourself skipped through the file names because
it's a bunch of numbers. You're saying one is
partial. Did I make it partial or did I give it?

1 don't know what these are,

So, I don't -- I cannot tell you
9 1,000 percent what these things are, so I cannot
10 answer your questions in any way that's going to
11 please you and make you jump for joy. Icanonly
12 tell you, as I did say --
13 Q But the answer is no. The answer is no,
14 you have not made any effort --
15 MR. CHEW: Ms. Bredehoft, please let --
16 please let him finish. Yousay --
17 MS. BREDEHOFT: He's not answering the
18 question. He's being --
19 MR. CHEW: He was trying. He was trying

00 -1 O R WD

994
1 something. What are you looking at?
2 A lt's adrawing.
3 Q Allright. Other than your attorneys, did
4 you have any communications with anyone about the
5 op-ed between December 18, 2018, and March 1,
6 2019, when you filed this lawsuit? I'm asking for
7 anyone other than your attorneys.
8 A Tdon'trecall
9  Q Okay. Now, between the time of the op-ed
10 being published on December 18, 2018, and March 1,
11 2019, when you filed the lawsuit, did you lose any
12 roles or career opportunities?
13 A Yes—
14 Q What?
15 A —Idid. Well, Thad a decent —-a
16 decent run with Disney for a while there on a
17 series of films called Pirates of the Caribbean
18 that I was removed from after the op-ed was
19 released.

20 to answer your question. 20 Q Has there been a Pirates of the Caribbean
21 MS. BREDEHOFT: He's not trying. 21 6?
22 All right. Let's go. Take this one out, 22 A Notjust yet. I think they're trying to

933 995
1 Austin. 1 figure out exactly how to do it.
2 MR. CHEW: Now you're just being nasty, 2 Q Has anyone spoken with you from Disney
3 and if you continue -- 3 about any role that you may have in Pirates 67
4 MS. BREDEHOFT: I'm not being nasty. 4 A No.
5 You're intentionally trying to drag this out so 5  Q Now, after the UK. judgment, you were
6 thatI don't get to ask the questions, and you 6 asked to resign from Fantastic Beast 3, and you
7 know it ' 7 testified about that earlier, and I'm not going to
8 MR. CHEW: You're projecting your value or |8 go through all of that again. What has your

9 lack thereof onto me.

10BY MS. BREDEHOFT:

11 Q Allright Let's talk about the op-ed,

12 all right, that Amber Heard published in The

13 Washington Post. Do yourecall that?

14 A When the article was published in the

15 Washington Post was December 18th, 2000 --
16 December something 2018, was it?

17 Q I'masking-- okay. Let's just go to the

18 next question. Yes, that's correct. Okay. Other
19 than --

20 A That's good. My memory worked. That's
21 great.

22 Q So, other than -- you're looking down at

9 career been like since you were asked to leave the
10 Fantastic Beast 3 and the UK. judgment was

11 released?

12 MR. CHEW: Objection. Ambiguous. Vague.
13 A The only way that I can explain it is --

14 well, it's very simple. Everybody is told, "Turn
15 off. Flick that light There's no -- he doesn't

16 existno more. Out," you know. Basically, it --

17 yes, it's been -- I've been -- yeah, it was kind

18 of -- I'ma leper in Hollywood.

19 (Q Okay. Have you had any roles? Have you
20received any roles since the UK. judgment came
21 out in November 2 of 2021?

22 A From--
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Q Sorry.

A From -- from Hollywood?

Q Yes, anyone, anywhere.

A Not from Hollywood, no. 1 have a
production company, and we've developed a number
of projects, one of which, Minamata, we did --
shot a film and it was released, although had --
back from MGM because they wouldn't release it
9 because of the situation with my name being linked
10to leper colonies.

11  Q And this is after the U.K. judgment.

12 A Yes,itis. Itis after the UK.

13 judgment.

14 Q All right. I'm going to jump to Tokyo for
15 a moment.

16 A Boy, that's hard.

17 Q Do yourecall -- do you recall going to
18 Tokyo in January of 2015 with Amber Heard?
19 A Oh, yes.

20 Q Okay. Do yourecall what the movie was
21 that you were going to for the premier?

22 A Tokyo. No, ma'am, I don't, Tdon't.

o0 ~1 O oh b e b —

998
Q All right. Do you recall where you stayed
in Tokyo?
A I--Thave a feeling that it was the Park
Hyatt, [ believe.
() And did the children stay in the same room
with you?
A The children stayed in -- we had adjoining
rooms, but it was sort of like a -- it was like a
9 nightly sleepover. You know, there was --
10 everyone would gather in the living room, couches
11 and chairs, and sleep on floors and pillows and
12 things like that.
13 Q And that was true of Brittany and Steven
14 Deuters, as well?
15 A No, Steven keeps to himself. Brittany
16 Bustice is -- was a very close friend of -- of
17 Ms. Heard's and -- and she was -- she was very
18 good with kids. My kids liked her, Brittany.
19 Q Okay.
20 A [ can't remember if there was anyone --
21 there might have been. Idon't remember if her
22 sister, Ms. Enriques was there or not.

o0 ~] N Lh B W b

5397
1 It's a - there's a lot -- I've been to Tokyo a
2 number of times for premieres. [ can't remember
3 which —
Q Do you recall whether your children --
A Yes, my children --
Q -- with you on that trip?
A Yes, they were with us, yes.
8  Q Was there anyone else besides Amber Heard,
9 your children, and you that went on that trip to
10 Tokyo in 20157
11 A Yes, there was her friend Brittany
12 Eustice.
13 Q Okay. Anyone else?
14 A Ibelieve one of the ~ one or two of the
15 guys from my camp, maybe Steven Deuters, or one of

-~ S B

16 security, maybe. [ can't remember. Maybe it was
17 Jerry Jost. [ don't -- [ don't remember.

18 Q Did anyone else accompany the children?
19 A The children were with —- no, pretty

20 much — so, I don't — no, we didn't bring a nanny
21 there. They were older - they were old enough to
22 not have a nanny.

999

MS. BREDEHOFT:

Q Okay. Austin, can you bring up

Exhibit 51, please?

REMOTE TECH: Stand by.

(Depp Exhibit 51, previously marked, is
attached to the transcript.)

Q Mr. Depp, I'm going to ask you to look --

§ take a look at what has been marked as Depp
9 Exhibit Number 51. It's page 12 of Amber Heard's
10 counterclaim. And, in particular, I'm just going
11 to ask you, and this is my last series of
12 questions and then I'm done, but I'm going to ask
13 you to take a look at paragraphs 45, 46, and 47
14 for a moment, And let me make that a little bit
15 1arger.
16 A Oh, that's good. Yeah.
17 Q Oops. Oops. I'll scroll down so youcan
I8see it. Okay. Do you see -- let me know when
19 you're done.
20 A Yes, 'm-- TI've finished.
21 Are you finished?

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

22 Q Was -- was Adam Waldman acting as your
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attorney when these statements were made?

MR. CHEW: Mr. Depp, I'm instructing you
not to answer that question based on
attorney-client privilege.

Q Did Adam Waldman have the authority to
speak on your behalf in making these statements
that are reflected in paragraphs 45 through 47 of
the counterclaim?

9 MR. CHEW: Mr. Depp, I'm instructing you
10 not to answer that question based on the

11 attorney-client privilege.

i2  Q Did you authorize Adam Waldman to make
13 these statements that are reflected in paragraphs
14 45, 46, and 47 of the counterclaim?

15  MR.CHEW: Irespectfully instruct you not
16 to answer that question based on attorney-client
17 privilege.

18 Q Have you at any time -- I'm sorry.

19 Have you at any time -- I'm assuming

20 you're taking your -- your attorney's advice and
21 that's why I'm not making you say more. Fair

22 enough?

60 =1 ON L o Wk —
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1 A True. Yes, Isaid it before but you

2 started early, so I just went with it.

3 Q Okay. Is Adam -- have you ever asked Adam
4 Waldman to retract these statements that are

5 reflected in paragraphs 35, 36, and 37?7

6 MR. CHEW: I would instruct you not to

7 answer the question based on attorney-client

8 privilege.

9  Q Is Adam Waldman still your attorney and
10 agent?

11 MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the
12 question. It's compound and calls for a legal

13 conclusion.

14 A Is Adam Waldman still my -- is still legal
15 counsel for me?

16 Q Yes.

17 A Yes.

18 Q Okay. And that has not changed at any

19 point between April 8, 2020, and the present; is
20 that correct?

21 A No, ma'am.

22 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. I think that I
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1 A Yes.

2 Q Do you -- have you ever retracted these

3 statements reflected in paragraphs 45, 46, and 47?
4 MR. CHEW: Assumes facts not in evidence.
5 He didn't make the statements.

6 Q Do youremember the question?

7 A Yes, I remember the question.

8 Have you at any time retracted these or

9 said these were false?

10 MR.CHEW: Objection to the form of the

11 question. Compound.

12 And I would instruct you not to answer the

13 question to the extent it would require you to

14 disclose attorney-client privilege. So, I'm going
15 to instruct you not to answer. So, I instruct you

16 not to answer.

17 MS. BREDEHOFT: Okay. And, Ben, just so
18 we're clear on the record; when you instruct him
19 not to answer, we're assuming he's accepting your
20 instruction; correct? So, I don't have to say,

21 "Are you following your attorney's advice"; right?
22 MR. CHEW: Correct.
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might be out of time.

John, what is the running time here? I'm
trying to respect my time here,

MR. CHEW: There's no rule requiring you
to fill out the time.

MS. BREDEHOFT: Yeah, I know, but I'malso
going to respect if I only have three-and-a-half,
[ think I've hit that. If [ didn't, though, I
have more questions. That's why I'm asking John.
10 John, would it be better if we go off the
11 record and then check that and then we'll see?
12 MR. CHEW: I think we should stay on the
13 record.
14 MS. BREDEHOFT: Oh, okay. I thought he
15 said last time he had to go off in order to
16 calculate.
17 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Yeah, to get an
18 accurate precise calculation, I'd have to go off
19 the record to stop the recording.
20 MS. BREDEHOFT: All right. Let's do that
21 real quick and check because 1 do think I'm out
22 and | don't want to --
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1 COURT REPORTER: And is standard delivery |1  CERTIFICATE OF SHORTHAND REPORTER-NOTARY PUBLIC
2 okay? 2 I, Victoria L. Wilson, the officer before
3 MR. CHEW: Yes, ma'am. 3 whom the foregoing deposition was taken, do hereby
4  COURT REPORTER: Okay. Thank you all very |* ey that the foregoing transeript s a true
5 and carrect record of the testimony given; that
5 much. 6 said testimony was taken by me stenographically
6 (Off the record at 1:43 p.m. ET.) 7 and thercafter reduced to typewriting under my
7 8 direction; that reading and signing was not
8 9 discussed; and that I am neither counsel for,
9 10 related to, nor employed by any of the parties to
10 11 this case and have no interest, financial or
1 12 otherwise, in its outcome.
12 13 IN WITNESS WHEREQCF, I have hereunto set my
14 hand and affixed my notarial seal this 19th day of
13 15 December, 2021.
14 16 My commission expires February 3, 2024.
15 17 '
16 8 . A Sy
17 19 Wﬂé‘*
18 20 VICTORIA L. WILSON
19 21 NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR
20 22 THE STATE OF MARYLAND
21
22
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1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF DEPONENT
2 I, JOHN C. DEPP, I, do hereby acknowledge
3 thatI have read and examined the foregoing
4 testimony, and the same is a true, correct and
5 complete transcription of the testimony given by
6 me, and any corrections appear on the attached
7 Errata sheet signed by me.
8
9
10 (DATE) (SIGNATURE)
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